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In the vyear 2011, the Company
continued to gain profits despite the impact
from the flood situation during the last quarter
of the year which required the Company to set
more allowance for doubtful accounts. In
addition, The Cabinet had passed the resolution
in October, 2011 to reduce the corporate
income tax from 30% to 23%. Effects of
changes in the new applicable tax rate through
the deferred tax asset re-calculation resulted
for the income tax expense of the Company to
increase for THB 24.58 million which was one
of the main reasons of the decreasing of the
Company’s net profit.

However, the Company believes that
after the flood, the overall motorcycle industry
for the year 2012 will be able to expand again
from the year 2011 as motorcycle is still the
one of the most important and necessary tool
for traveling or even for business operation in
Thailand.

For the Year 2012, the Company aims
to not only continue sustaining the growth in
Thailand but also expand the business to The
Asean Market. In the meantime, the company
still emphasizes on strengthening on its value
added services which will lead to the
continuous growth for the interest of its
stakeholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of
Directors and management, I would like to
take this opportunity to express our sincerest
thanks to the Company'’s clients,
manufacturers, dealers as well as all the staffs
and the shareholders for their supports and
contributions and earnestly hope that those
supports and trust will remain firmly with us in
the future.
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Group Lease Public Company Limited comprises of 4
independent directors, namely, General Suebsan Dardarananda as President of Audit
Committee, Mr. Sonit Pichyangkul, Mr. Pholdej Therdphithakvanij and Mr. Krit Phanratanamala
as members of the Audit Committee. In 2011, the present Audit Committee had conducted 2
meetings with management and internal auditors, the opinions are as follows :

¢ Financial Statement From the review of the Company’s financial statements with
the management and the external auditors, it appeared that the quarterly and
yearly financial statements have been done correctly in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting standard principles, complete and reliable.

e Internal Control System The Company had set up Internal Audit unit reported
directly to the Audit Committee to undertake the internal auditing function. It was
found that the Company’s internal control system was sufficient, transparent and
can be inspected. This was efficiently done through the cooperation from all
relevant departments.

e Compliance to the Laws The Company strictly complied to all the SEC’s and
SET's laws and regulations including laws and regulations from other regulators in
relevant to the Company’s business.

e The External Auditor Ernst & Young Office Limited was appointed the
Company'’s external auditor for the year 2011 which was the fifth consecutive year.
The auditing was done under the generally accepted accounting standard while the
remunerations were reasonable.

e Transactions that may cause conflicts of interest The Audit Committee
considered that the Company’s related party transactions were reasonable, justified
and was done for good faith of the Company and complied with the rules and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

* The Meeting Attendance of each Audit Committee

General Suebsan Dardarananda 1/2 11 May, 2011
Mr. Sonit Pichyangkul 2/2 11 May, 2011
Mr. Pholdej Therdphithakvanij 2/2 20 April, 2011
Mr. Krit Phanratanamala 2/2 20 April, 2011

From the overall auditing of the Company’s management operating systems, the Audit
Committee has the opinion that the Company has efficient and transparent systems which can
be inspected in every process. The record keeping system is accurate and compatible in each
department so that the data can be used as reference among different departments. Moreover,
the Audit Committee also encourages the application of good corporate governance of the SET
for the Company. Eventually, comments, advices as well as improvement guidelines were given
for the utmost benefits of the Company as a whole.

Audit Committee
Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
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General Information

Company Name
Registration Number
Core Business

Location

Registered Capital
Paid-up Capital
Type of Share
Home Page
E-mail

Tel .No.

Fax. No.

Group Lease Public Company Limited.
0107537000327 (old number Bor Mor Jor. 279)

Hire purchase financing of motorcycles.

63 Soi 1 Thetsabannimitrtai Road,Ladyao, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900.

431,500,000 baht.

343,825,905 baht.

68,765,181 Ordinary shares at par value of 5.00 baht per share.

www.grouplease.co.th

glpcl@grouplease.co.th
0-2580-7555
0-2954-2902-3

Corporations in which Group Lease PCL holds more than 10% of shares

- None -
References
Securities

Share Registrar

Auditor

Legal Advisor

Common Stock

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building 4,6-7th Floor,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110.

Tel : 0-2229-2800 or 0-2654-5599 Fax : 0-2359-1259

Call center : 0-2229-2888

Website : http://www.tsd.co.th

Ms.Pimjai Manikajornkit Certified Public Account No. 4521
Ernst & Young Office Limited

33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office

Complex 193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110 Tel. 0-2264-0777 Fax 0-2661-9192

Email Address : ernstyoung.thailand@th.ey.com

Mr. Kaptan Jeerasete
63 Soi 1 Thetsabannimitrtai Road, Ladyao, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900. Tel. 0-2580-7555, Fax. 0-2954-2902-3

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



ainanivnIsiuIagdsUaaIuSHEN
Summary of the Financial Position and Operating Results

BATIAIVBAAIAIIUAINITA TUN5111A1 15
Profitability Ratio

dasmanideasu (%)
Yield Rate
dasmaniaang (%)
Interest Rate
grusvdaraanda (%)
Net Yield Rate
dnsAlsgng (%)

Net Profit Rate
dasuanaunnuiianiu (%)
Return on Equity

38.10 37.24 36.81 38.55

6.29 5.88 6.81 6.59

31.81 31.36 30.00 31.96

24.13 30.42 22.64 24.56

18.23 27.35 21.58 27.72

aas1arunanvilssdnsninlunirsa1iduviu

Efficiency Ratio
dasNanauLnunIunsne (%)
Return on Total Assets

8.64 11.18 8.35 9.47

dnsnIsuNuaIRUNINE (Lvin)

. 37 . .
Total Assets Turn Over Ratio (Times) 0.36 0.3 0.37 0.39

BATITIUTIATIZUUTEILNEINITETY

Financial Policy Ratio
dandrunildusadrugdariu (1vin)
Ratio of Liability to Equity (times)

0.72 1.62 1.26 1.98

danarudulvidaatiug (1vin)

Ratio of Total Receivable to Loan from (times)
dasnsanaduiiuna (%)

Dividend Rate

1.82 1.69 1.62 1.52

68.85 69.57 69.77 7.35

BATIAIUAUNINTUNSTWE
Asset Quality Ratio

famahuadaniavdoargaysadudasiy (%)
Ratio of Allowance for Doubtful Debt to Total 13.20 8.65 8.92 5.96
Receivable

somahuniigeysaduidasiu (%)

Ratio of Bad Debt to Total Receivable
famahudulvdudariugasusneldsadudany (%)
Ratio of Non performing loan to Total Receivable

6.45 2.91 3.42 2.13

5.76 4.80 4.87 3.91
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Company Back Ground

Group Lease Public Company Limited
was established on May 6, 1986 with registered
capital of 1 million baht by the Luaengrungsi
family, and started business in the hire purchase
of automobile in Bangkok and upcountry. During
the year 1990, Mr. Khanchai Boonpan and Mr.
Anusak Inthraphuvasak acquired the business
from the existing shareholders, and focus on the
hire purchase business of motorcycles while
slowing down the automobile hire purchase.
After that the Company had expanded hire
purchase of other things such as trucks,
machineries, printing presses as well as the
financial leasing, factoring contracts, asset
financing and personal loans. Later on from the
year 2004, the core business of the Company
has been hire purchase of motorcycles only.
The Company had been increasing its registered
capital continuously from 1 million baht to 431.5
million baht as at December 31, 2011.

In 2007, the Company had a significant
change in the major shareholder part. From the
end of 2006 until the beginning of 2007, The
group of major shareholders gradually sold
shares to the APF Group* so that at present, the
APF Group has become the Company’s major
shareholder holding 46,770,002 shares or 68.01
% of total issued and paid-up capital of the
Company.

In 2011, from the first 3 quarters of the
year, although the Company had unexpectedly
changed its management structure, it still able
to maintain its profitability. However, the flood
crisis in Bangkok & Metropolitan areas in quarter
4 required us to increase our allowance for
doubtful account which resulted in the
decreasing in the net profit from last year.
Despite that, such allowance is expected to
recover back to normal soon as our business
fundamentals are still strong and other
supportive factors will probably encourage the
customers to be able to pay back their debts as
normal very soon.

*The companies in the same group are Engine Holdings Asia
Pte. Ltd. and A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Overview of the Company's Business

In 2011, the hire purchase of new
motorcycles was the main business of the
Company. The motorcycle price for
financing is about 45,000 baht each, with
the well known brands such as Honda,
Yamaha, Suzuki and Kawasaki. The highest
financing price of motorcycles is no more
than 85,000 baht each.

Apart from the hire purchase
financing of motorcycles service, the
Company also offers other after sales
services, such as service of annual vehicle
tax extension and insurance, to add more
channels to the Company's revenues and to
protect risk for the assets which is the
collateral for hire purchase.
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Structure of the Company’s Revenue

2554 2553
se'lduasusiin 2011 2010
The Company’s Revenue Wuun sauay Wuum sauay
(‘'000) (%) ('000) (%)

selsnanwatindauasnanaudis: 824.154 92.47 802.77 92.77 742.16 92.75
Hire Purchase and Asset Financing
se'leidu 67.109 7.53 62.55 7.23 58.05 7.25
Other Incomes

891.26 100.00 865.32 100.00 800.21

ANNTANTUAIAU

Competition Situation

units
500000 -
421,111
390,862
400000 - 366,290 371,491 378,311 r
329,476
300000 -
200000 -
100000 -
o L} L} L} L} L)
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
year

Motorcycle Registed in Bangkok
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The unit sales of motorcycle has
direct impact to motorcycle hire purchase
business. In Bangkok and the vicinity, the
heavy traffic situation means a motorcycle
is still the vehicle that can deliver
convenience and speed. As long as the
Mass Transit Organization System is
unable to serve citizen's need, using a
motorcycle is certain a good choice for
traveling or running businesses. By using
a high technology, modern and beautiful
designs, and compatible and convenience
of motorcycle, such as automatic
transmission, could get a good response
from consumers. Those aspects increase a
trend of using motorcycle and make the
motorcycle leasing industry  more
attractive for investment. It's noticeable
that new entrepreneurs coming into this
industry are rising. It also results in higher
competition.

In 2011, the number of
motorcycles registered in Bangkok and
Metropolitan were 390,862 units or the
increase of 3.32% from the year 2010
which  were 378,311 units. Overall
motorcycle industry situation in 2012 will
probably be able to expand slightly when
compared to the year 2011 caused by the
need of motorcycles after the flood crisis,
the government policy to stimulate
expenses within the country as well as the
agricultural crops prices which still shows
good trend. The negative factors which
might deteriorate the overall economic
growth such as the uncertainty of
European economic crisis which impact is
still unpredictable and the US economics
which is still under recovery period both of
which will have direct impact on the
export industry as well as the political
sentiment  which is still the prolonged
problem.
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Risks of external sources of funding

To operate hire-purchase business
continuously adequate source of fund is
needed. At present, the Company’s major
source of fund comes from 2 sources : loan
from bank and cash flow from operation.

On December 31, 2011 the bank
loan outstanding balance was 884.32
million Baht which was a long-term loan.
The long-term credit facilities of the
Company which have not yet drawn down
amounted to 421 million Baht.

During the past, the Company
mainly used loan from the bank and has a
very good repayment record and also able
to follow the conditions of the facility
contracts such as to maintain the debt to
equity ratio and to maintain hire — purchase
receivable to loan ratio so that the Company
can reduce risk from the lack of external
sources of fund.

Risks of loan interest rates

The main revenues of the company
comes from interest received from
motorcycle  hire  purchase financing.
Changing in the interest rates will directly
affect the Company's profitability : the net
yield rate comes from hire purchase
receivable yield rate deduct the cost of loan
interest rate. If loan interest rate rises, the
cost of funding will be increased while hire
purchase interest rates are fixed for the
period of hire purchase contract. So to
reduce risk from the increasing of interest
rate, the Company had signed interest rate
swap contract for some parts of loan to fix
the interest rate at 6.60 — 6.85% per
annum.
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Risks on the incompatible between the
term of the sources of fund and hire

purchase contract term

Normally the hire  purchase
installment period varies from 6-48 months
(average is 27 months) so that the
Company has to set policy to determine the
repayment period for long term facility
agreement from financial institution to be
compatible with the installment period for
the liquidity of business operation.
However, cash flow which covers future hire
purchase receivable growth has been
assessed to analyze and evaluate liquidity in
order to plan for the financial support to be
compatible with the hire purchase contract
conditions for smooth business operation.

Risks on losses on _sales of
repossessed motorcycles

The Company will repossess the
motorcycles if the customer did not pay
installment specified in the hire purchase
agreement. The motorcycles will be sold by
auction to the used motorcycle dealers in
Bangkok Metropolitan and provincials. The
net receivable of each motorcycle is
normally higher than the price of
repossessed motorcycle so if the Company
cannot claim that loss from the debtor or
guarantor, the sale of repossessed
motorcycles will be recorded a loss.

However, in order to prevent such
risk, in the first place, the Company has set
up strict guideline and system in approving
the credit by checking the information from
the Company’s database, National Credit
Bureau (NCB) and Motorcycle Hire-Purchase
Association in determining the quality of the
borrowers before granting the loan. The
Company also develops collection service to
avoid having much repossessed motorcycle
amount which may increase from business
expansion.
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Risks on the operation which may lead
to non performing loans

At present, the hire purchase of
motorcycles is not limited by any rules or
special laws from the Government.
Therefore, companies in the hire purchase
of motorcycles business can expand their
business, limited only by their own capacity.
However, the risk might occur from the non
performing loan from careless credit
approval process if there is lack of good
internal control systems.

However, the Company will strictly
consider on every approval process giving
the importance on the credit quality by
checking the customers’ data from the
Company's database system of more than
410,000 persons and by being a member of
The National Credit Bureau Company
Limited and also a member of Motorcycle
Hire-Purchase Association of Thailand. The
Company can screen the customers’ credit
effectively from these 3 data sources. On
December 31, 2011 the Company has non
performing loan amount 141.76 million Baht
or 5.76% of total receivables. @ When
compared to the non performing loan as of
December 31, 2010 which was 4.80% of
total receivable, the increased rate of NPL
was 20% while the Company has set aside
the allowance for doubtful debt on
December 31, 2011 and 2010 at 291.30
million and 228.34 million Baht, respectively
or the Ratio of Allowance for Doubtful Debt
to Total Receivable at 13.20 and 8.65,
respectively.
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Risks on competition and new
competitors in the hire purchase

finance of motorcycles

To operate motorcycle hire purchase
business, there is no need to invest in many
materials or tools but only sufficient source
of fund for hire purchase financing.
However, the key of success is not only the
source of fund but also some expertise such
as credit quality evaluation skill and
collection follow-up. Many competitors
failed in this business because of the lacking
of these capacities.

Motorcycle dealers are the important
persons who introduce clients to use our
hire purchase services. Therefore, there is
a risk if dealers do not recommend our
services to the customers.

As a result, fast process on credit
analysis and approval together with efficient
information technology system to support
the operation and the experienced human
resources who have expertise in the
business are very necessary so that the
Company can approve credit within an hour
and satisfy dealers' needs. Besides, with
our own information technology system
which specially developed to suit the
business and personal expertise, the
Company can also provide the customers
and dealers with fast service in checking the
outstanding balance for the closing of
accounts.
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Risks on the influence of the major
shareholder to business management

A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd.,, the
Company's major shareholder and Engine
Holdings Asia Pte., Ltd. which is in the same
group of company (“APF  group
shareholder”) is holding a total of
46,770,002 shares or 68.01% of registered
and fully paid-up capital of 68,765,181
shares of the Company as of January 5,
2012 which is more than two-third of the
total shares eligible for the APF Group to
control any resolutions which legally require
more than two-third voting from the
shareholders’ meeting and that the other
minor shareholders are not able to do the
check and balance effectively.
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Top ten of shareholders as at December 30, 2011 (included exercise result of GL-W1)

1 Engine Holdings Asia Pte. Ltd. 27,406,560 39.86%

2 158 1a./..au. Taaded 3146 19,363,442 28.16%
A.P.F. Holdings Company Limited

3 usEn Wnmauidans de 2,971,545 4.32%
Thai NVDR Company Limited

4 ug  gsAidu Wunil 1,000,000 1.45%
Mr.  Harkishin  Tanwani

5  we  &udnd UTULY VA 678,500 0.99%
Mr.  Somsak Booranaboonwong

6 e JUWIH Anilauysal 570,000 0.83%

Mr. Sompong Silpsomboon

7w e Wilasuonafia 500,000 0.73%
Mr.  Visooth Foofuengmongkolkij

8 wa  Teu avanysal 500,000 0.73%
Mr.  Dome Ruengsomboon

9 uwm  {uw ardsueyatiue 456,500 0.66%
Mr.  Suchai Sriprachya-anan

10 w9 virssed  WsYYeiuané 390,000 0.57%

Mrs. Petchrat Peerawattanachart
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Board of Directors

ATATIUNNTATIARAL
Audit Committee
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General Manager grilnanagaunialu
Internal Audit
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Management Structure

Group Lease Public Company Limited management's structure consists of two directors' group;

the company's Board of Directors and the Audit committee. The management structure consists of two

groups of committee which are the Directors committee and the Audit committee.

Company's Board of Directors' structure

As at 31 December 2011, the Company's Board of Directors consisted of 10 directors as follows

Shareholder (APF Holdings

1. Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita Chairman of the Board of Directors Co.Ltd.)
. . Shareholder (Engine Holdings
2. Mr. Tatsuya Konoshita Director Asia Pte.Ltd.)
. . Shareholder (Engine Holdings
3. Mr. Muneo Tashiro Director Asia Pte.Ltd.)
4. Mr. Somchai Limpattanasin Director Management
5. Mr. Worasak Kriengkomol Director Shareholder (APF Holdings
Co.Ltd.)
6. Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri Director zt;a[fdhc))lder (APF Holdings

7. Gen. Suebsan Dardarananda

Chairman of the Audit committee
and Independent Director

8. Mr. Sonit Pichyangkul

Audit Committee /Independent

Director

9. Mr.Pholdej Therdphithakvanij Agd't Committee /Independent
Director

10. Mr. Krit Phanratanamala Agd't Committee /Independent
Director

Secretaries to the Board of Directors are
1. Ms. Siriphen Pongchairerks Company Secretary
2. Ms. Sasithorn Subwitthayaphan Assistant to Company Secretary

Authorized directors

The directors who have authority to sign on behalf of the Company are Mr. Mitsuji
Konoshita or Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri or Mr. Somchai Limpattanasin or Mr. Worasak
Kriengkomol, two of the four Directors jointly sign with the Company's seal will be binding upon

the Company.

The authority to make legal prosecution, execution, litigation as well as other legal
prosecution processing both civil and criminal or any other cases, the filing of complaints, and
withdrawal of complaints, the application for payment as well as the complete process of
bankrupt cases including the filing of claim on property, repossession of assets or money from
the employees, the court officers or any other persons on behalf of the Company will be done by
Mr. Paiboon Chaibenjapol, the General Manager or Mr. Kapton Jeeraseth, the Credit and
Marketing Manager or Mr. Kittichai Maneenont, the Collection Manager or Mr. Sanchai
Ruengpum, assistant collection manager signs with the Company’s seal.
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors take responsibility in managing the company's operation according to legal,

company objectives, its regulations and resolutions of shareholders' minutes with loyalty and

carefulness , which can be concluded as following :

1.

To arrange the shareholder meeting within four months after closing the accounting
period.

. To arrange the Board of Directors meeting quarterly.

. To present financial statements, both balance sheets and income statements, which

have already been examined by external auditor to shareholders for approval.

. To appoint a proxy Managing Director who manages under the Board of Directors'

control. The Board of Directors to appoint a proxy to function, or to have specific
authorization under Board of Directors' agreement at specific of period. However the
Board of Directors can cancel, withdraw, or change the given authorization.
Appointing a proxy, who must manage instead of Board of Directors, should be agreed
by the Board of Directors' minutes. Furthermore there should have independence
directors and Audit committee involved in those minutes. If any director contradicts a

proxy, the minutes should clearly recorded that incident.

. To set up the targets, direction, policy, plan, and the company's budget, and to control

and supervise management systems to reach the policy. Except the subjects which
need the approval of shareholders, such as legal regulations increasing or decreasing

capital, sale/purchase or transferring entity, and correcting the company's prospectus.

. Furthermore, directors have responsibility to control the company operate under the

Securities and Exchange Act and the Stock Exchange of Thailand's rules such as
transactions concerning related companies and the sale or purchase of relevant

assets.

. To generate management structure such as appointing a management committee,

Managing Director, general managers and other committee appropriately.

. To follow the performance of operation, and whether it complies with plan and

budgeting.
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9. Directors cannot operate or be partner in any business which is in the same business
of the company, or that business is the company's competitor whether that benefit is
belong to himself or others. The exception is when that action is informed in a

shareholders' meeting before appointment.

10. Directors have to inform the company promptly if he is involved directly or indirectly
in any benefit which comes from the company's contract, including increasing and

decreasing of capital/debenture of a director.

However that above authorization doesn't include the authorization in approving the
transactions which cause conflict of interest to the company's advantage. This limitation complies to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand's rules, the approval of such transactions has to be resolved in Board of

Directors of shareholder, according to the company's regulation or related law.
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Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2011 there were 4 independent directors in the Audit committee as

follows

Chairman of the Audit committee and Independent
1. | Gen. Suebsan Dardarananda
Director

2. *| Mr. Sonit Pichyangkul Audit Committee and Independent Director
3. | Mr. Pholdej  Therdphithakvanij Audit Committee and Independent Director

4. | Mr. Krit Phanratanamala Audit Committee and Independent Director

*The Audit Committee who has the experience in financial auditing

Responsibility of the Audit Committee

The Audit committee takes responsibility, subject to Board of Directors, and

reports directly to the Board of Directors as follows

1. Oversee the reporting process and the disclosure of the financial information that
it should be correct, sufficient and accurate.

2. Oversee to ensure that the Company has a suitable and effective internal control
and internal audit systems., to ensure the independence of the internal audit
department. The audit committee shall approve any selection, rotation or
termination of the department heads of the internal audit department or any
other departments responsible for the internal audit system of the Company.

3. Ensure that the Company follows all the SEC’s and SET's laws and regulations

and other laws and regulations relevant to the Company’s business

4. Consider, select, and recommend the Company’s auditor and its remuneration.
Have a meeting with the external auditor at least once a year, without the

management team being present.

5. Ensure that the firm complies all related rules when there is a connected
transaction or transaction that may lead to conflict of interests.
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6. Ensure full coverage of the audit committee’s monitoring activities. The report
must be signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual

report. The report should include the following :

« Comment on accurateness, completeness and credibility of the Company’s

financial report.
« Comment on an adequacy of the firm’s internal control system.

« Comment on the Company’s compliance with SEC’s and SET's laws and regulation

and other laws relevant to the Company’s business.
« Comment on suitability of the external auditor.
« Comment on transactions that may cause conflicts of interest.
» Number of meetings of the audit committee, and attendance of each member.

« Comment on other concerns that have arisen as the audit committee performed

its duties as defined in committee’s charter.

» Any other transactions that all shareholders and general investors should know
under the scope of duties and responsibilities of the audit committee assigned by
the Board.

7. Anything else as assigned by the Board and has been approved by the audit

committee.
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Management

As of December 31, 2011 there were 6 members of management as follows

1. | Mr. Paiboon Chaibenjapol General Manager

2. | Mr. Kapton Jeeraseth Credit and Marketing Manager

3. | Mr. Kittichai Maneenont Collection Manager

4. | Ms. Aujchara Chaina Accounting and Finance Manager

5. | Mr. Somkid Charupaiboonphan | Personnel and Administration Manager
6. | Mr. Wanchalerm  Wongphan Information Technology Manager

Authority and responsibilities of the General Manager

1.
2.

To operate and manage the company's normal business.

To operate and follow-up the company's operation within the business plan and
the company's policy which was set up by the Board of Directors.

. To approve the company's expenses within the yearly budget which was approved

by the Board of Directors.

. To consider employment, promotion, transfer, resignation and set up wages and

salary of employees.

. To be the proxies in administering the company's operation compliance with its

objectives, regulations, discipline, and command.

. To make agreements and decisions according to the normal operation of the

company. To make approval in the company's operation compliance with level of
authorization which is appointed by Board of Directors. The General Manager can
also appoint a proxy to act or do the duties which are necessary and appropriate.
That appointing should be done under the Government's regulations and the
company's rules and regulations.

However such appointing does not include the authority which provides

the General Manager or any proxy to approve the transactions or contracts that he is
involved directly or indirectly in advantage/disadvantage, and when that involvement
causes a conflict of interest to the company or any related transaction which referred
by the Stock Exchange of Thailand's regulations. However such appointing can be
done by the approval of Board of Directors and shareholders compliance with related
law and the company's regulations.
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Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita

Date of Birth 10 April, 1967 (45 years)

Nationality Japanese

Education Master and Bachelor of Law, Osaka University, Japan
Position Chairman of the Board of Directors

Starting date 7 March, 2007

Shareholding 0.02% (12,500 shares)

Work Experience last 5 years :

2009 - 2010 Chairman of the Board of Director, A.P.F. International Insurance Co. Ltd.
2008 — Present Director, P.P. Coral Resort Co.,Ltd.

2007- Present Director, A.P.F. Hospitality Co., Ltd.

2007 - Present Chairman of the Board of Directors, Group Lease Pcl.

2006 — 2011 Chairman of the Board of Directors, United Securities Pcl.
2005 - 2009 Director, A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd.

2004 - 2010 Director, Sanwa Techno Co., Ltd.

2000 - Present Director, Sanwa World Services Co., Ltd
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Mr. Tatsuya Konoshita

Date of Birth 22 March, 1972 (40 years)

Nationality Japanese

Education BA. (History), Osaka University, Japan
Position Director

Starting date 20 April, 2011

Shareholding - none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — present Director, Group Lease Pcl.
2006-2011 Chairman of Executive Board, United Securities Pcl.
2005-2006 CEO, Bangkok Station Network Co., Ltd.
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2545 - 2550 Works Applications Co., Ltd.

Mr. Muneo Tashiro

Date of Birth 16 Sept. 1972 (40 years)

Nationality Japanese

Education Bachelor of Arts, Faculty of Literature, Osaka University
Position Director

Starting date 22 April, 2009

Shareholding -none-

Work Experience last 5 years :

2011 - Present Director, Asuka Foods Co., Ltd.
2009 — Present Director, Group Lease Pcl.

2009 — Present Director, Engine Holding Asia Pte.
2007 - Present CEO, Wedge Holdings Co., Ltd.
2002 - 2007 Works Applications Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Somchai Limpattanasin

Date of Birth 10 February, 1960 (52 years)
Nationality Thai
Education Master of Business Administration, Kasetsart University

Bachelor of Laws, Faculty of Laws, Thammasat University
Bachelor of General Management, Faculty of Business Administration,

Ramkamhaeng University

Training Director Accreditation Program No. 94/2012
Thai Institute of Directors Association

Position Directorand Executive Director

Starting date 15 June, 2011

Shareholding - none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — Present Executive Director - Group Lease Pcl.
2007 — 2011 Director & Senior Vice President - Summit Capital Leasing Co., Ltd.
1994 - 2008 Vice President - Bara Sumi—Thai Leasing Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Worasak Kriengkomol

Date of Birth 14 April, 1971 (41 years)

Nationality Thai

Education MBA, Western Illinois University, USA
Bachelor in Economics, Thammasat University

Position Director

Starting date 15 June, 2011

Shareholding - none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — Present Director, Group Lease Pcl.

2010 — Present Executive Director, Asia Partnership Fund Group

2008 - 2010 Managing Director, A.P.F. International Insurance Co.,Ltd.
2001 - 2008 Managing Director, Liberty Insurance Co.,Ltd.
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Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri

Date of Birth 27 August, 1973 (39 years)
Nationality Thai
Education Master of Business Administration, Thammasat University

Bachelor of Architecture, Kingmongkut Institute of Technology, Ladkrabang

Training Directors Accreditation Program No. 62/2007
Thai Institute of Directors Association

Position Director

Starting date 7 March, 2007

Shareholding - none -

Work Experience last 5 years :
2007 — Present Director , Group Lease Pcl.
2005 - 2007 Product Manager, Mahaphant Fibre Cement Public Co., Ltd.
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General Suebsan Dardarananda

Date of Birth
Nationality
Education
Training

Position
Starting date
Shareholding

10 December, 1951 (60 years)

Thai

BA. Political Science, Norwich University, USA
National Defence College

-Director Certification Program No. 98/2008

-Finance for Non-financial Director No. 39/2008

Thai Institute Of Directors Association

Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee
11 May 2011

- none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011-Present
2009-present

Independent Director & Audit Committee, Group Lease Pcl.

Specialist to the Office of the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Defence /
Deputy Chief, Office of the Minister of Defence
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Mr. Sonit Pitchyangkul

Date of Birth
Nationality

Education

Training

Position

Starting date
Shareholding

26 November 1950 (61 years)

Thai

MA. (Economics), North Texas State University
BA. (Economics), Thammasart University
Director Certification Program No. 33/2005
Thai Institute of Directors Association
Independent Director & Audit Committee

11 May, 2011

- hone -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — present
2009 — present

2007 — 2008
2006 — present
2004 - 2006

Independent Director & Audit Committee - Group Lease Pdl.
Executive Director - Ekthana Engineering Co.,Ltd.

Vice President (Credit Dept) — Thanachart Bank, Pcl.

Executive Director - Thaifilatex Group , Latex Thread, Real Estate

Senior Executive Vice President (Hire Purchase) - AIG Finance Plc.
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CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst, USA

Master of Business Administration (Finance),University of Florida, USA
England Communication & Signal Processing, Imperial College London,
British Government Scholar

13gyayne3 Jennssueans (TWd1) asnsalnminenads

Advanced Audit Committee Program No. 27/2009

Director Certification Program No. 86/2007

MFM 1/2009, MFR 9/2009, MIA 6/2009, MIR 7/2009
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Mr. Krit Phanratanamala

Date of Birth
Nationality

Education

Training

Position
Starting date
Shareholding

19 June, 1968 (43 years)

Thai

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst, USA

Master of Business Administration (Finance),University of Florida, USA
England Communication & Signal Processing, Imperial College London,
British Government Scholar

Electrical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

Advanced Audit Committee Program No. 27/2009

Director Certification Program No. 86/2007

MFM 1/2009, MFR 9/2009, MIA 6/2009, MIR 7/2009

Thai Institute of Directors Association

Independent Director & Audit Committee

20 April, 2011

- hone -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011-Present
2011-Present
2011-Present
2008-Present
2006-Present
2006-Present
2006-Present
2005-Present

Independent Director & Audit Committee, Group Lease Pcl.
Director, Biodegradable Packaging for Environment, Pcl.
Director, Diamond Building Products Public Company Limited.
Independent Director & Audit Committee, Quality House Pcl.
Director, Royal Porcelain Public Company Limited

Director, The Union Mosaic Industry Public Company Limited
Director, Sahathai Steel Pipe Public Company Limited

Vice President, Thai Prosperity Advisory Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Pholdej Therdphithakvanij

Date of Birth
Nationality

Education

Training

Position
Starting date
Shareholding

29 August, 1968 (43 years)

Thai

Doctor of Philosophy (Civil Engineering) Lehigh University, U.S.A.
Master of Construction Management Washington University, U.S.A.
Master of Structural Engineering Washington University, U.S.A.
Bachelor of Engineering (Civil) Chulalongkorn University

Director Accreditation Program No. 89/2011

Thai Institute of Directors Association

Independent Director & Audit Committee

20 April, 2011

- none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — present
2007 - present

2006 — 2007

Independent Director & Audit Committee, Group Lease Pcl.

Deputy Managing Director, R.K.V. Engineering Consultant Co., Ltd.

Deputy Managing Director, IMMS Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Paiboon Chaibenjapol

Date of Birth
Ntionality

Education

Position
Starting date
Date of employment

Shareholding

15 July, 1961 (50 years)

Thai

General Management, Sukhothai Thammathirat University
Modern Manager Program, Chulalongkorn University
General Manager

1 June, 2011

1 April, 2010

- none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — Present
2010 - 2011
1994 - 2010

General Manager, Group Lease Pcl..

Assistant to MD. Group Lease Pcl..

Deputy Managing Director BT World Lease Co., Ltd.
(Siam Wall Leasing Co., Ltd.)
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Mr. Kapton Jeeraseth

Date of Birth 8 November, 1963 (49 years)

Nationality Thai

Education Bachelor of Law, Ramkhamhaeng University
Position Marketing & Credit Manager

Starting date 1 June, 2011

Date of employment 1 February, 1990

Shareholding - none -

Work Experience last 5 years

2011 — Present Manager, Marketing & Credit, Group Lease Pcl.
2006 — 2010 Head of Credit Section & Legal Advisor, Group Lease Pcl.
1990 - 2006 Credit Section officer, Group Lease Pcl.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



vafiadada ugiuun

Juldauiliin 24 aanau 2502 (52 1)

deyanéi na

ANTANRN Fyane3 nQuUIE AR IINENRLTINATLNY
FILULUY Ninn1sEausAITIALAL

JUFUELLALG 1 fiqureu 2554

Fuisuou 1 flunAu 2533

dadrunrsdianu - laifi -

dseaun1sainisvineu 5 disuan

W.A. 2554 — {laqiiu Wians dhausasdaiy usEn nfU&a e (uuiau)
fi.m. 2553 — u.a. 2554 Wihadans dhausnnsizaniiu usEn A& A1da (uuiau)
2549 — fi.m. 2553 Winiaiu uinsdaAu usEN n3Udx Ada (unzu)
2533 — 2549 W ARuusasdauin 1S nFU&s de (ur1au)

Mr. Kittichai Maneenont

Date of Birth 24 October, 1959 (52 years)

Nationality Thai

Education Bachelor of Law, Ramkhamhaeng University
Position Collection Manager

Starting date 1 June, 2011

Date of employment 1 March, 1990

Shareholding - none —

Work Experience last 5 years

May 2011 — Present Collection Manager, Group Lease Pcl.

Mar 2010 — Apr 2011 Collection Assistant Manager, Group Lease Pcl.
2006 — Mar 2010 Head of Collection Section, Group Lease Pcl.
1990 - 2006 Collection Section officer, Group Lease Pcl.
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Mr. Somkid Jarupaiboonphan

Date of Birth
Nationality

Education

Position
Starting date
Date of employment

Share holding

Work Experience last 5 years :
1996 - Present
1990 - 1996

25 November, 1962 (49 years)

Thai

Bachelor of Arts (B.A.)

Major Subject Thai Language and Literature,
Srinakharinwirot University, Chonburi
Personnel & Administration Manager

1 August, 1996

1 February, 1990

0.01% (11,700 shares)

Personnel and Administration Manager, Group Lease Pcl.
Personnel and Administration officer, Group Lease Pcl.
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Mr. Wanchalerm Wongphan

Date of Birth 5 December, 1971 (40 years)

Nationality Thai

Education Bachelor of Science, Quantitative Economics, Ramkhamhaeng University
Position Information Technology Manager

Starting date 1 June, 2011

Date of employment 1 July, 1993

Shareholding -none-

Work Experience last 5 years :

2011 - Present Information Technology Manager, Group Lease Pcl.
1996 - 2010 MIS unit officer, Group Lease Pcl.
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Ms. Aujchara Chaina

Date of Birth
Nationality

Education

Position
Starting date
Date of employment

Share holding

Work Experience last 5 years :

2011 - Present
1995 — 2011
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14 March, 1975 (37 years)

Thai

Bachelor of Business Administration, Accounting,
Phranakorn Rajabhat University

Accounting & Finance Manager

1 June, 2011

15 March, 1995

-none-

Accounting & Finance Manager, Group Lease Pcl.

Assistant Accounting & Finance Manager, Group Lease Pcl.
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Nominating Directors

The Company hasn't established a Nominating Committee, however abilities,
experiences, vision, and credit are factors to consider when nominating directors and

proposing the list to shareholders to appoint.

The Company's Articles of Association states that in each of annual general
meeting, one-third of directors or nearest amount (1/3) has to be resigned by rotation.
In the first and second years after registering the entity, the resigning directors were
determined by drawing lots. For the subsequent years later, the retired directors shall be
determined by the ones who were in the position the longest. The retired Directors can
be re-elected. However, in case of the vacancy of director from the reasons other than
the expiration of the term of office, the remaining board of directors shall appoint other
director to fill the vacancy except the remaining term of office is less than 2 months.
The resolution of such appointment has to be passed with not less than three-fourth of
the votes from the remaining directors. The substitute director shall hold office only for

the remaining term of office of the director whom he or she replaces.
Principle and voting methods for nominating directors are :

1. Each shareholder shall have a number of votes equal to the number of shared
held.

2. Each shareholder must exercise all the votes he has according to nhumber of
shares held (as in item 1). He may nominate one or several persons as
directors. If several persons be nominated, he may not shares his voting rights

with others.

3. The candidates shall be ranked in descending order from the highest number
of votes received to the lowest, and shall be elected as directors equivalent to
the number of directors who are elected by the meeting of shareholders. In
the event that there is a tie in the last to be elected, and this exceeds the said
number of directors that the meeting of shareholders is required to appoint,
the presiding Chairman shall have the deciding vote.

Audit committee's members will be appointed by the Board of Directors, and the term for

holding office is two years.
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Remuneration of Directors and the management

Remunerations in terms of money* (Unit : Baht)
Directors’ Name ' 2011 ' 2010

1. Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita 220,000 227500

2. Mr. Samart Chiradamrong 50,000 287,500

3. Mr. Muneo Tashiro 210,000 277,500

4. Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum 50,000 287,500

5. Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri 220,000 287,500

6. Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn 50,000 317,500

7. Mr. Satit Rangkasiri - 244,584

8. Ms. Jaranya Sangsukdee 50,000 317,500

9. Mrs. Vachira Na-Ranong 60,000 52,917

10. Mr. Tatsuya Konoshita 150,000 )

11. Mr. Krit Phanratanamala 200,000 }

12. Mr. Pholdej Therdphithakvanij 200,000 -

13. Gen.Suebsan Dardarananda 160,000 }

14. Mr. Sonit Pichyangkul 170,000 -

15. Mr. Somchai Limpattanasin 150,000 -

16. Mr. Worasak Kriengkomol 140,000 )

~ Total 2080000 2,300,001

Remark : Mr. Satit Rangkasiri resigned on October 19", 2010.

- Mr.Samart Chiradamrong, Mr.Surasak Kemthongkam, Mr. Chatchai Chotetanakan, Ms.
Jaranya Sangsukdee and Mrs.Wachira Na Ranong resigned on April 20", 2011.

- Mr.Tatsuya Konoshira, Mr.Krit Phanratanamala and Mr.Pholdej Therdphithakvanij were
appointed directors on April 20%,2011.

- flet?,-ggflla.san Dardarananda and Mr. Sonit Pichyangkul were appointed directors on May

- Mr. Somchai Limpattanasin and Mr. Worasak Kriengkomol were appointed directors on
June 15™,2011.

* Attendance allowance and Bonus

Number of Management and their
: 2011
remuneration

Number of Management (person) 11%* “

Salary, Bonus, Provident fund, and other
remuneration (million Baht)

*Inclusive of 4 resigned managements who resigned on Apr 30,2011 and 1 resigned management who resigned on
May 20, 2011.

17.82
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Internal Controls

During the Company's Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2012, held on February 13",
2012 which consisted of the Board of Directors together with the Audit committee, report on
internal control systems of the Company was presented and clarified by the management.
From the assessment of the internal control systems of the Company which consists of 5
measures, the organization and environment, risk management, management control activities,
Information Technology system & communications and monitoring, the Board of Directors
believed that the Company’s internal control systems were sufficient, detailed as follows:

The Company’s organization structure and authorities and responsibilities of each
department were clearly stated in writing. Future objectives and targets were also determined
so that the management and staff in different levels can achieve the same goals together. The
achieving of such goals should be based on honesty, loyalty and ethics. The Company also had
a written rule forbidden the management and staffs to do anything which may lead to conflict
of interest and penalty of such violation was also determined.

Management gives significant importance to risk management because the nature of the
Company’s business is related directly to risks. Special cares were taken for financial
management and credit approval process by evaluating potential risk and setting preventive
measures and risk management. There are preventive measures and evaluations of risk from
information technology data base which is considered the core of operational performance. In
addition, management also continuously evaluates other external factors which might incur risk
to the Company's operation.

The Company's management structure together with the scope of authority and
responsibilities were written clearly for each department. To ensure accuracy and compliance
with law and the Company's regulation, internal control systems for each operational process
were established to verify and control the operation of each department. In case of related
transactions with the Company’s major shareholder, directors, executives or other related
persons, the Board of Directors had approved in principle for the related party transactions that
it should have the same commercial terms as those an ordinary person would agree with any
unrelated party under the similar circumstances, on the basis of commercial negotiation and
without any dependent interest resulted from the status of the director, executive or related
person as prescribed in the Securities and Exchange Act No. 4, B.E. 2551. Moreover, those
directors who may have conflict of interest on the related transaction might not vote to approve
for such transaction.
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The Company always gives importance to information technology system and
communication system so that the compiling and analyzing of data were done with speed,
accuracy, and in time. Standard of operations were set up for the staff to be able to receive
information clearly and correctly which also support the decision making of the management
and the Board of Directors on both problem solving and planning especially the accounting and
financial information.

The Company has always monitored its business operating result in order to be able to
achieve the set goals. Management meeting is set up at least once a month to monitor the
operating result. In case of an urgent problem arising from other significant factors which
might seriously affect the normal operation of the Company, an ad hoc meeting can also be
held. In addition, the Company also set up Internal Audit Unit which reports directly to the
Audit Committee to carry out the internal auditing on the operation of each department of the
Company. Its objectives are :

1) To increase the efficiency of the Company’s operations and report the result to Audit
Committee and management.

2) To ensure that the Company's assets are utilized efficiently.

3) To report to the Audit Committee and management about the possible problems so
that preventive solution could be done in time.

4) To ensure the existence of appropriate internal control systems and ensure that the
set systems were carried out properly.

Dividend Payment Policy

The dividend payment policy of Group Lease Public Company Limited states that
dividend will be paid not less than 40 percent from net profit after deducting tax and other legal
reserves. In considering the dividend payment, other factors such as The Company’s operating
result as well as its financial position and liquidity should also be considered. Payment of
dividend has to be considered and approved by the shareholders. However, the Board of
Directors is able to approve interim dividend payment and the shareholders shall be
acknowledged about the interim dividend payment in the next shareholders’ meeting.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors realizes the importance of having good corporate governance to be
in compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance for Listed Companies 2006
introduced by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company has a clear policy and procedures
to ensure transparency, control, and to protect the long term interests of shareholder by
considering corporate ethics, including stakeholders and society. The implementation of the
policy for last year are as follows :

Rights of Shareholders

From the Board of Directors’ meeting no. 12/2007 which was held on
October 25, 2007 involving the directors and members from the Audit
committee, the company has improved the good corporate governance policy,
determine the frameworks and post on the Company’s website. However, in
practice, the Company uses “The Principles of Good Corporate Governance for
Listed Companies 2006” as guideline.

The Company’s shareholders were treated equally in terms of information
receiving such as the information about the annual general meeting or rights in
voting, etc. The Company also provides convenience for shareholders in
participating in the annual general meeting. The notice of the AGM informing
the date, time, place and the agenda of the meeting together with other
supporting documents were sent to the shareholders not less than 7 days before
the meeting. (or 14 days prior for the meeting which have important agenda)

In the year 2011, the Company arranged the Annual General
Shareholders Meeting on April 20", 2011 at the head office of the Company,
located in Bangkok. The Company informed the date, time, place, and the
details of each agenda adequately to the Shareholders and also posted it on the
Company’s website in advance. The shareholders were provided enough time to
make inquiries or suggestions during the Meeting.
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The Company had provided the opportunity for advance proposal of

agenda and or nominates qualified persons to be the Directors in the annual
general shareholders’ meeting for the year 2012. The criteria and method of
proposal was stated on the Company’s website: www.grouplease.co.th.

The shareholders can make advance proposals during 25 November, 2011
until 31 January, 2012 or about 1 month in advance of the Company’s
financial closing period and last for 2 months.

The eligible shareholder shall hold at least 0.5% of the Company’s paid-up
capital and remain holding the Company’s share at such rate for not less
than 1 year from the past until the submission of the proposal.

Necessary information such as the name, profile, position holdings in

other organizations as well as the criteria and nomination method including the
proposed director type were clearly stated in the notice of the AGM. In the case
of re-election of the Directors, additional information such as the meeting
attendance report and the term of office period were also included.

Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders

Proxy form B with specified 3 Independent Directors’ name was provided for
the shareholders to conveniently appoint as their proxy to attend the
meeting and vote on their behalf. In addition, the Company uses voting card
for every agenda for transparency and future reference.

The Company did not add any agenda without advance notice.

On Directors’ election agenda, the Company utilizes voting for each individual
person separately.

After the shareholders’ meeting, the minutes of meeting were filed and kept
in @ secure place easy for auditing.

Role of Stakeholders

The Board of Directors and management initiated the guideline concerning the
Company'’s stakeholders as follows:

O

The Company has communicated message or policy commitment from the
Chairman which reflexes the CSR concept with the Company’s operations.

The Board of Directors has set up policy and operation guideline concerning
the safety and hygiene in the working place.

The Board of Directors has set up policy and guideline concerning the
employees’ remunerations and welfare.
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Provident Fund was provided for employees who will receive the
Company'’s contribution part according to their employment period.

Employees’ development of knowledge and potential The Company
encouraged the employees to develop their working skill by providing both
on the job training and encourage them to enroll for the various courses
directly in relation to their job as well as those internal and external courses
which can increase their general knowledge.

The Breaches of Human Rights The Company has the policy not to
involve in the breaches of any human rights.

Policy and guideline about customers The Company pays attention and
serves the customers’ needs by emphasizing on the importance of the service
quality at fair price.

Policy and guideline about competitors The Company treats other firms
who do the same business fairly and occasionally group together to give
assistance to each other.

Policy and guideline about suppliers The Company treats suppliers fairly
and according to the agreed commercial terms and or contract.

Policy and guideline about creditors The Company strictly complies to
the agreements signed between the Company and the creditors with on-time
payment and also follows other condition strictly.

Policy and guideline about the infringement of intellectual property
or piracy The Company will not support or use any non-copyright goods.

Policy of anti-corruption and bribery for commercial benefit of the
Company The Company sets up prohibitions and penalties strictly towards
any corruption which violates in terms of both legal and ethical as well as any
bribery for commercial benefit.

Policy and guideline towards society The Company gives importance to
the development of education of the society and community especially to
children and youngsters, therefore, the projects concerning with educations
were specially supported.

Activities on Community Development Last year, the Company had
supported various educational projects such as the scholarship for staff’s
children who got good grade, the donation of motorcycles to the Profession
Promotion Division, Department of Social Development, Bangkok for
educational purpose and to many provincial police stations in various areas
for official use as well as the fund support on Children’s Day activities
arranged by metropolitan police station, etc.

Operations under environmental standard The Company’s business
characteristic does not have any impact on the environment.
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o Efficient utility of resources The Company gives significant importance
on the efficient usage of resources such as office equipment, power supply
especially fuel for vehicles which is the important resources for the
Company'’s business operation.

o Employees’ training about environment The Company pays much
attention on the environmental conservation. The employees were regularly
informed about the news about environment and also encouraged to be
trained about environmental issue whenever there is a chance.

o Channel provided for any stakeholders to contact or complain on
the things which may be a problem directly to the Board of
Directors The Company by the Board of Directors provides opportunity for
the stakeholders to submit any clues to the Board of Directors on various
issues to protect the related parties’ interest such as any illegal issues, the
correctness of the financial statement, internal control system and other
unethical issues. Moreover, the Company also gives importance on the right
protection of the clues provider to be safe and justified. Clues can be
submitted via e-mail announced on the Company’s website which will directly
reach the Board of Director’s designated person.

Disclosure and Transparency

In 2011 the Company has developed and continuously update website as
the center of company’s information disclosure which provide in both Thai and
English, in addition to annual statement (Form 56-1), annual reports and SET
information disclosure system (ELCID)

We give the importance of disclosing information such as financial data or
others which must be accurate, complete, clear and on time to enable investors
and interested parties to use them in making decision. We have a unit to handle
such duty called “Investor Relations” which may be contacted at tel. 66 2580
7555 ext. 5023 or make inquiries through the Company’s website:
www.grouplease.co.th.
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The Board of Directors has to ensure that reports on the Company’s
financial statements and other financial information appeared in the
annual report and the results of operation are appropriately and
consistently done in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Standard in Thailand. Notes to financial statements are
sufficiently disclosed with completeness, accuracy, correct and
reasonable. The Board of Directors arranges the disclosure of
information in the annual report which includes the statement of its
responsibilities concerning the Company’s financial report presented
together with the auditor’s report, and the annual report will be sent
together with the notice of the shareholders’ annual general meeting
to the shareholders.

The Board of Directors ensures that its roles and responsibilities and
other committee are disclosed. @ The number of meetings and
attendance record of each director as well as results of tasks
performed during the year are also reported to the shareholders in
the annual report.

The Board of Directors has revised and provided a summary of the
corporate governance policy together with the implementation of the
policy through the Company’s website. (please see detail in the
Company’s website)

The Board of Directors has set up policies on environmental and
social issues and disclosed on the Company’s website together with
the implementation. (please see detail in the Company’s website)

The report on each director and executives’ securities trading and
shareholding will be done and reported in the Board of Directors’ Meeting
whenever there is any change.

Each director has to report on their

interest and their connected persons when entering into the position of Director
and whenever there is any change. Such report will be kept with the Company

The Company has presented appropriate information

about customers’ relation on the Company’s website and always have it updated.
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Responsibilities of the Board

«  Number and Proportion At present, the Board of Directors consists of 10
members in which 1 person is Executive Director, 6 persons are non-
executive Directors, and 4 persons are Independent Directors. The ratio of
independent directors is 40% of the total directors for check and balance so
that no single group can make decision on their own.

« Term of Office It was clearly stated in the Company’s Articles of Association
that one-third of the Directors who has the longest term of office shall retire
by rotation in each AGM but still have opportunity to be nominated for re-
election. For the Audit Committee, the term of office is 2 years.

- Definition of Independent Directors The Company defines the qualifications
of the Independent Directors in accordance with the SEC regulations as
follows :

o An Independent Director does not hold more than 1% of paid-up shares in the
Company, parent company ), its subsidiary , affiliated company © or related
company or any legal entity that has related persons .

o An Independent Director is not an employee, staff member, an advisor who
receives a regular salary or a controlling party of the Company, its parent
company, its subsidiary, affiliated company or any legal entity that has related
persons. (present and 2 years before appointment)

o An Independent Director is not an immediate family member or a person legally
occupying similar status as parents, spouse, siblings, sons and daughters
including spouses of sons and daughters of an executive officer of the Company,
a major shareholder, a controlling person or an individual who will be nominated
to be an executive officer of the Company or any of its subsidiary.

o An Independent Director does not have business relationship with the Company,
its parent company, its subsidiary, affiliated company or any legal entity, which
has related persons that the relationship does not interfere with his exercise of
independent judgment. And among other things materiality in making an
independent opinion regarding the operation of the Company.

Note : (1) A parent company is the company that holds more than 50% of the Company’s paid-
up capital. (2) A subsidiary is the company that we hold more than 50% of its paid-up capital. (3)
An affiliated is the company that we hold more than 20 % but not more than 50% of its paid-up
capital. (4) legal entity that has related persons includes those who hold more than 10% of its
paid-up capital.

All 4 Independent Directors have qualifications required for the
Independent Director and are also members of the Audit Committee in
accordance with the SEC notification korlortor.kor.(wor) 32/2551 as of June 5%,
2008.
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Directorship of the Directors and Executives in other companies the
Company limits the number of directorship of the Company’s Directors at a
maximum of 8 companies at other organizations. There is no limit for the
executives as they have to work full time in the Company. The number of
board membership positions of each directors are as follow :

Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita Chairman of the Board of Directors 4
Mr.Tatsuya Konoshita Director 1
Mr. Muneo Tashiro Director 4
Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri Director 1
Mr. Somchai Limpattanasin Director 1
Mr. Worasak Kriengkomol Director 1
Gen. Suebsan Dardarananda | President of Audit Committee/ Independent Director 1
Mr. Sonit Pitchyangkul Audit Committee/ Independent Director 3
Mr.Pholdej Therdphithakvanij | Audit Committee/ Independent Director 2
Mr. Krit Phanrattanamala Audit Committee/ Independent Director 7

Chairman and General Manager(the highest management) The Chairman of
the Board of Directors and the General Manager(the highest management of
the Company) are not the same person. Roles and duties of the Board of
Directors and the management were clearly separated. Moreover, having an
Audit Committee who is the Independent Director also ensures the check-
and-balance of management.

The Board of Director did not choose an Independent Director to be the
Chairman of the Board.

The Company Secretary the Company has a Secretary who serves as
coordinator and takes care that the Board has complied to the related rules
and regulations as well as the Board’s resolutions including the keeping of all
important documents of the Company such as minutes of the Meetings, etc.
In the Board of Directors Meeting no. 3/2008 held on March 19™,2008, the
resolution was passed to officially appoint the Company Secretary for the
first time in accordance with the new SEC Act.

The Company has only Audit Committee as a sub-committee which will help
monitor the good corporate governance of the Company. However, there is no
policy for the Company to establish any other committees in the near future.
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Review and approve key business issues The Board of Directors involved in
planning of the Company’s strategy, objective, policy, and budget. It also
advises and controls the implementation of the plan according to the policy.

Corporate Governance Policy The Board of Directors set and approve a
written corporate governance policy for the company since the Board of
Directors Meeting no. 12/2007 held on October 25", 2007. The Company
reviewed the policy and compliance to the policy annually. For the report of
the year 2011, the Board of Directors Meeting no. 2/2012 held on February
13™, 2012 has considered and approved the Corporate Governance report, to
be disclosed in the annual report and posted on the Company’s website.

Business Ethics The Company set up the guidelines for Directors,
Management and the employees according to the Code of Ethics or
Statement of Business Conduct. Such guidelines are documented, and are
informed to directors, management, and employees. Furthermore the
operation guidelines were also set up in writing for the employees as
operating guidelines in which it states that the employees should work with
honesty and good discipline and also states penalties in violation of the
regulations.

Conflict of Interests The Board of Directors proposed the preventive action
for conflict of interest carefully and honestly and reasonable and
independently under good business ethics significantly for the benefit of the
Company. The preventive actions are set as follows :

o Transactions between the Company and related persons have to be considered
and approved in presence of Audit Committee and in compliance with the SET's
rules and regulations and the Securities and Exchange Act. Directors who have
conflict of interest in such transaction cannot vote.

o Related party transactions should be disclosed to the shareholders together with
the opinion from the Audit Committee or independent financial advisor whether
such transactions are appropriate in terms of price and justification of the
transaction.

o Directors and management are prohibited to use the Company’s information for
own benefit both directly or indirectly.

o The Company’s Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 8/2008 held on August 21%,
2008 had approved in principle that the management is able to approve the
related transactions which have the same commercial terms as those an
ordinary person would agree with any unrelated party under similar
circumstances, on the basis of commercial negotiation and without any
dependent interest resulted from the status of the director, executive or related
person as prescribed in the Securities and Exchange Act No. 4, BE. 2551.
However, the related transactions which worth more than 1 million baht will be
reported in the Board of Directors’ Meeting for acknowledgement.
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Internal Audit System

The company realizes the importance of internal controls in every
procedure to get the most efficient operations and to have sufficient internal
control appropriated for each operation procedure of each system. As a
result, Internal Audit Unit was set up who will report directly to the Audit
Committee. The Company also set security to access internal information by
using authorized passwords for each level and also identifies the
responsibility of each person. For financial control systems, the Company set
the procedure for verifying financial report systems. Those reports are
presented to the concerned management every month. The Company also
arranges the management meeting to consider and correct mistakes stated
in the reports every month. The Company provides risk management by
reporting accounts receivables’ management systems every month. Accounts
receivable will be grouped according to historical payment and each group
will have officer taking responsibility. Management, together with the Board
of Directors’” meeting, will be held to evaluate the efficiency of accounts
receivable’ management systems every month.

Risk Management Policy It is the policy that every division is to perform in
compliance with the regulations and relevant laws. Operating policy,
operating regulations and command of authorization are in writing and
revised to cope with the on-going operation.
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The Board of Directors’ meeting will be held quarterly according to the
Company’s regulation. However, at present the Company sets more frequency
of the meeting to once a month. The Audit committee meeting is set to be held
once a quarter. Additional meetings can be held if necessary. The invitation
letters stating the agenda together with supporting documents will be sent to the
Directors about 7 days in advance so that the Directors will have enough time to
study them before coming to the Meeting.

In 2011, altogether 14 meetings were held and the meeting attendance

of each director were recorded below :

Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita 13/14
Mr. Tatsuya Konoshita * 20 April, 2011 6/9
Mr. Muneo Tashiro 12/14
Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri 13/14
Mr.Somchai Limpattansin * 15 June, 2011 5/5
Mr. Worasak Kriengkomol * 15 June, 2011 4/5
Gen.Suebsan Dardarananda* 11 May, 2011 8/9
Mr. Sonit Pitchyangkul * 11 May, 2011 8/9
Mr. Pholdej Therdphithakvanij * 9/9
20 April, 2011
Mr. Krit Phanrattanamala * 20 April, 2011 9/9

* Newly appointed during the year

The Board of Directors has the policy to conduct the self-assessment of
the Board of Directors annually in which the results would be used to improve
the Board's efficiency. The topics of assessment were as follows:

1. Structure and Qualification of the Board
Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
Board of Directors Meeting

Function of the Board

Relationship with the Management

6. Directors and Management Development

From the overall assessment for the year 2011, most of the assessed
topics were done fairly to very well. However, the assessment for the year 2011
was only for the present Board of Directors and executive team after the former
Directors / executives had resigned from the Company or after 20 April, 2011.

kN

Nevertheless, the present Board of Directors still questioned about the
fiduciary duty of the resigned Directors / management which may suspect to be
harmful to the Company. The Company is therefore, assigning a working group
to prepare for proper actions to retain justice and comply with the law and the
rules and regulations of related regulators for good faith of the Company.
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« The company has set the appropriated remuneration for the directors and the management
to be comparable to the industry and enough to maintain the qualified directors and in
relation to the Company’s profit. The remunerations include salary, meeting allowance
according to attendance and bonus. The remuneration is considered in relation to the
operation result and performance of each Executive. Every Director receives the same rate
at 10,000 baht per meeting once a month. Bonus amount will normally rely on the
Company’s performance which will normally propose at the rate 2 times of employees’ bonus
(e.g. Employee gets 2 months bonus, directors will get 4 months of the meeting allowance).

e The Audit Committee will receive a meeting allowance of 10,000 baht per meeting and the
Directors who are the Audit Committee will receive both allowances for the more
responsibilities.

« The remuneration will be proposed to the annual general shareholders meeting for approval
annually.

e Training The Board of Directors, Audit Committee, management as well as the Company
Secretary and the employees were encouraged and facilitated to join the training courses
concerning the corporate governance and management skill. Such training courses may be
an in-house training or the seminars arranged by specialized organization such as the
Accounting Association or the Revenue Dept. or other regulators such as the SET and SEC.

e New Director Preparation The Company provides necessary documents and information to
new directors useful to perform director duties which introduce the nature of the business
and the operations of the Company.

e Succession Plan The General Manager regularly presents the succession plan to the Board to
assign successors in case they cannot perform their duties.

e Executives Development Program The Board has established a development program for
executives and the General Manager will report to the board annually. The executive
development plan will be considered together with the succession plan.

The Company issued Warrants to Directors and employees 3 times in the years 2008, 2009
and 2010 totally 2 million units, the following conditions are the criteria which related to the CG
evaluation guideline :

- The exercise date will be only once after the issuance of Warrant for 3 years
- The exercise price is not lower than the market price as of the allocation date.

- There should be no Directors or employees receive the Warrant exceeding 5% of the total
issued Warrants.

Additional details of the Warrant issuance can be viewed in the Auditor’'s note in the
Company'’s financial statement, Note no. 19.
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The Company does not have the policy to allow the Managing Director
and /or the General Manager to be a director in other organization except requested by
the associated companies.

The Company’s Directors shall not get involved in the
companies that have the conflict of interest with the Company’s business, for example,
the company with the same business as the Company or any other type of business that
might have the impact on the decision making for the benefit of the Company.

Directors, management as well as employees are always encouraged to continuously
participate in the various training or seminar courses to develop their knowledge and
skill.

The size, business type and the organization structure of the Company
does not require for the Company to set up any CG Committee. However, all Directors
shall participate in the setting up of CG policy of the Company.

The size, business type and the organization
structure of the Company does not require for the Company to set up the Risk
Management Committee. However, the Company believes that the Board of Directors,
Audit Committee as well as the external Auditor will be able to monitor and control the
Company’s risk to a certain extent.
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Related Party Transactions
The financial statement of Group Lease Public Company Limited as of December 31,

2011 and 2010 presents related transaction as follows :

Related party transactions as at December 31, 2011

Related Company A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd.
Relationship Major Shareholder hold 22.70% of total shares
1. Transaction The company had short-term loan from A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd. ,
fixed interest rate at 7.50%
Interim 5 million Baht, interest received amount 0.05 million Baht
Outstanding 0 Baht

The Audit Committee has reviewed and validated this transaction, and gave the opinion that this
transaction is needed to support the operating cash flow because at that time the company was
on the process to get approval for new long-term loan from the Bank. The interest rate is closed
to the normal rate which the company get from the bank, but without collateral. This case
classified as a general business transaction for the highest benefit of the company with the
reasonable interest rate. No more this kind of transaction in the present day.

Related party transactions as at December 31, 2010

Related Company A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd.
Relationship Major Shareholder hold 76% of total shares
1. Transaction Do automobile hire-purchase contract with the company. Repay
12 installments, interest rate same as the normal business.
Interim 5 million Baht, interest received amount 0.19 million Baht
Outstanding 0 Baht

The Audit committee has already reviewed and validated this transaction, and gave the opinion

that this is a general business transaction for the highest benefit of the company with the
reasonable interest rate. No more this kind of transaction in the present day.
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Related Company Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita

Relationship Chairman of the Board of Director
2. Transaction Do automobile hire-purchase contract with the company. Repay
12 installments, interest rate same as the normal business.
Interim 5 million Baht, interest received amount 0.19 million Baht
Outstanding 0 Baht

The Audit committee has already reviewed and validated this transaction, and gave the opinion
that this is a general business transaction for the highest benefit of the company with the

reasonable interest rate. No more this kind of transaction in the present day.

Related Company Mr. Jeremy Kim San Liau
Relationship Director of the related company
3. Transaction Do automobile hire-purchase contract with the company. Repay
12 installments, interest rate same as the normal business.
Interim 4 million Baht, interest received amount 0.15 million Baht
Outstanding 0 Baht

The Audit committee has already reviewed and validated this transaction, and gave the opinion

that this is a general business transaction for the highest benefit of the company with the
reasonable interest rate. No more this kind of transaction in the present day.

The essence and appropriation of related transactions

The essence and appropriation of related transaction are approved for gaining the
highest benefits to the company. All related transactions have to be reviewed for compliance
with the company's operation and its characteristic by the Audit committee. Furthermore the

fee/return for related transactions is paid at a fair price.

Procedures for approval of related transactions

The creation of related transaction depends on the essence and appropriation which
have to be presented to Board of Directors, together with Audit committee, for making the
judgment. All related transactions have to comply with the Public Company Limited Act, and
which the directors who involvement directly and indirectly with advantages/disadvantages of

the related transaction, cannot vote.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED




UL AN TUHNAN51NSI8N1552UA Y
AZNSINATTUEEN LansuiindonansznuuadniIsyinsan1sseniteduduyanaiaiafiaiimu
TALEINIINAUTETEUU LRTWENENNIALRAANTITVINTILANTAIARNIAY TALIAZAUNANTYINTENITAINRT

wwgmansidanuiniuwaniullvianalsyTamigegauasus¥nivindy

fususianissenindduiataiinduluauiaatiu us¥ndasirvuaidautabiduliau
andazn1saTaaldlagavasdumainasidaulaiinunsan donasassuni1sazaadlfidau

suifiauseg Alaivuadunuisasdasliaui@sanisle 4 Aauniayanaiianaianudaugonie

'
o

WadsylamiludnrazduladuusEnuayasadadlilalnasan1saINaIAaAUEATINATITUTEN LA
Asanuazdfiiatvitduldaunguunaitdrandnnintduazaaranannsneg wasdaiivdy dsznd
A9 UIa2aAINUAARIRNITNNUAITUNINNSWEHLRLARIANINNINE WA / 3D ARNANINNTWEILUY

sznd'lng aaanaunslfifiaudasvuaiisisunisitiamadayanisvinsansiia e waznns

1aurrTainninansSwER U IUTHEN

minfinansseninsduzasusEnidadusuyanaianafianudaugonionalss Taad fsiu'le

®andaarafimnudaudinionadsyianiluauran vsEnazivaaznssunaisasadautiuglv

3
-1

ANuiuAmAuTIA dasdAinauuny Huivanuiniuwaranuminauaasnansiazsiiadu u
nsdifaaenssumsanagavbifianui g lunsiasannansssuinedunanaiady viEnasly

Wi aasssniansauliyduasuddn (dugliainuiuiiaidusianisszninedudvnan tiain

v v
@ o a o

anuiuldiszaaunisdaiulanataaznssunis wia iavu anuensdl vdusEnazitaime

s18n155enIAu L lunin e lsenauun1sdui lasunisasiadauanngdaviiayduasusEnm

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



Policy and potential of related transactions

The Board of Directors have to realize the effects of related transactions that may cause
advantage and disadvantage between the company and its related company or persons. The
Board of Directors try to avoid related transactions, except when it causes a higher profit or

being essential.

If there is any related transaction which causes to the company future benefits, the
Audit committee will give its opinion about its price, its return, the essence and appropriation of
that related transactions. However if the Audit committee is not a specialist in that area, the
specialist or external auditor will be introduced to give an opinion to the Board of Directors or
Shareholders when making the decision. Furthermore, the company has to disclose its related
transactions in Notes to the Financial Statement which have to be examined by the external
auditor.

For potential related transactions, the company sets the appropriated price and
conditions that may cause related transaction, according to the normal course of business. The
Board of Directors has to follow that discipline and cannot approve any related transaction
which causes them benefit but contradicts the company's benefit. Related transactions have to
be presented to Board of director to consider compliance with the Public Company Limited Act,
or any related derived from Security Organization which includes presentation and disclosure of

purchasing and selling assets between related the company or persons.
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FIUTANTHURATHNANITALTHUANS

Financial Position and Operating Results

JUATSLU

fAqds1avunsauicyd

Tuszazal 3 Wisunn vi¥venadaulaagsauigdiuauann lalianusiu
TusraviunisanadgautavusEnaINsassl laaeil

JuUNTSISY Waaufydsy  euuiuaas
n3adal aunnaLanil wWaauiayd
U3EnN & tdudn | vvamAnnla indfiauasia lifidaulu
waue €9 A1im
11 2553 | usEn &fnou lBudn | ugNRNNTa ifieauasia 4521 Laifidaula
waue €9 A1im
11 2552 | ysEn &fnonu lAudn | uRNITIUA LAARIITAUNR 3516 Laifildaula
waues f9 A1in

Financial Statement

Conclusion of Auditors’ Report

For the past three years the company's financial statements had been audited
and have the opinion from the auditors as follows :

2011 Ernst and Ms.Pimjai Manitkajornkit 4521 Unqualified
Young Office Limited

2010 Ernst and Ms.Pimjai Manitkajornkit 4521 Unqualified
Young Office Limited

2009 Ernst and Ms.Rungnapa Lertsuwankul 3516 Unqualified
Young Office Limited
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JuaaaavusEn N3UAd A An (Nrinau)

Financial Statement of Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

e AU
unit : million Baht

il 2554 il 2553 il 2552
2011 2010 2009
FIMOULBY | samar Uy Sagaz  {wulu | Sauar
amount amount %
Aunswei
Assets
Aunsweiuyuiiau
Current Assets
WURALRZIEANSLAL ULV URR
Cash and cash equivalents 187.96 8.06 0.87 0.03 1.77 0.09
anuilanudyenh davazananau
dhseiiferimuazhseaalundetl -
gnd
Current portion of hire purchase
and installment sales receivables,
net 676.42 29.00 1,227.87 46.01 1,040.01 50.42
&uniwesanisung — §na
Assets foreclosed, net 15.42 0.66 17.48 0.66 7.39 0.36
Aunineviyuiaudy
Other current assets 54.48 2.34 72.11 2.70 39.98 1.94

SUIAUNS WL ULI LU

Total current assets
Aunswelainyguiiau
Non-current assets

1,318.34

1,089.15

Wuehnydsganifinnssandsedu
Pledged fixed deposit at financial
institution

0.01

0.01

0.27

0.01

anuiluazidulvdfuunqning
Accounts receivable and loans to
employees

0.00

0.00

0.06

0.00

Wuadnuseazan) — gna
Long-term investments

0.00

0.00

2.00

0.10

anuilaudaygah dauazanasay
drsendediue drssiAiuninuiiell —
gna

Hire purchase and installment sales
receivables - long-term portion, net

1,239.33

53.13

1,182.18

44.30

861.55

41.77

7Adu amsuazansal — ané
Property, plant and equipment, net

56.30

2.41

59.03

2.21

50.36

2.44

Juniwdnddu'lesadaiiyd
Deferred tax assets

65.51

2.81

80.99

3.04

35.35

1.71

&uniwelainyuiaudu
Other non-current assets
suAUNSNe By uIau
Total non-current assets
SAIUIAUNSWE

Total assets

37.04

1,398.49

1.59

59.95

2,332.75 100.00
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27.69

1.04

1,350.16  50.60

2,668.49 100.00

23.79

1.15

973.38  47.19

2,062.53 100.00
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e AU
unit : million Baht

il 2552
2009
FIULTY ‘
amount

il 2553
2010
AUIUY sauay
amount %

il 2554
2011

AUIUU

Sauay
%

Sauay
amount %

uiiau
Liabilities

g =
uildunyuiiau
Current Liabilities

WudaAutuduandugiuscasduain
ganfunisidu

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

0.00

72.92

2.73

25.35

1.23

wWniinisen
Trade accounts payable

3.30

0.14

3.80

0.14

1.50

0.07

Wugiiussazanindeivuaziseanaluy
uniloil
Current portion of long-term loans

694.95

29.79

788.13

29.53

746.98

36.22

MmEFdulaflidunnar1gang
Corporate income tax payable

46.02

1.97

63.52

2.38

36.76

1.78

Wniedelsedu
Insurance payables

7.27

0.31

15.45

0.58

15.22

0.74

A ladaad9ane
Accrued expenses

6.44

0.28

15.26

0.57

9.73

0.47

Uszananmsuiidussasdu
drsasnalsylamininau
Provision for short-term liabilities
Provision for employee

compensation

18.65

0.70

wildunyusaudu

Other Current Liabilities
st aunyuEau

Total Current liabilities
uilduluvyuiiau
Non-current liabilities

21.56

0.92

22.47

1,000.20

0.84

0.77

Wugiiuseaean - andanndiuide
Aruaszaaluniotl
Long-term loans, net of current
portion

189.37

8.12

629.46

23.59

289.86

14.05

Uszanansuiidusazad
drsasnalsylaminidnau

Provision for long-term liabilities
Reserve for long-term employee
benefits

1.74

0.07

3.52

0.13

WuilszAuanudamiaaudani
da

Cash guarantee for damage on hire
purchase agreements

2.43

0.10

3.00

0.11

nildundduldsadaiod
Deferred tax liabilities

st auliuyuiau

Total non-current liabilities

SIUULAY

10.20

0.44

8.73

21.76

657.74

0.82

24.65 296.86 14.39

42,15 1,657.93 62.13 | 1,148.36 | 55.68
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%UE AU
unit : million Baht

il 2554 il 2553 ' il 2552
2011 2010 2009

FUIULTY TRERY ANNIULSU TRERY ANNULTU TRERY

%
fruaavidaniy
Shareholders' equi
Nuaanuaradnsual YaAuay
5.00 1w
Issued and paid-up Capital of Baht
5 each 311.61 13.36 282.08 10.57 280.84 13.62
grutAuy Iy
Share premium 293.66 12.59 192.19 7.20 187.66 9.10
Wufuanineiu
Share subscription received in
advance 149.50 6.41 0 0 0 0
ludduansdnanavdaviuaniey
Warrant to buy ordinary shares 2.01 0.09 4.38 0.16 4.43 0.21
Alsavau
Retained earnings

0TI dr1savaunnuune
Appropriated - statutory reserve 43.15 1.85 43.15 1.62 39.95 1.94
fo'lulainass
Un-appropriated 549.55 23.56 488.76 18.32 401.30 19.46
shudunaInfialiu
Total shareholders' equi
suvilauuarduaasrdariu

Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity 2,332.75 100.00 2,668.49 100.00 2,062.53 100.00
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yufitlsaanu aasusEn nFlad e (Munau)

Income Statements of Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

%uE AU
unit : million Baht

il 2554 il 2553 il 2552
2011 2010 2009

AUIUNY thliGH AUIUNY T2y AUIUNY

Amount % Amount % Amount
52216 31ANISALTEUIY
Revenues
se'ldnannatdauasananau
ik
Hire purchase interest and
installment sales income 824.15 92.47 802.77 92.77 742.16 92.75

se'leidu

Other income
52u5e'l6

Total Revenues

A l2imaluniseatidueu
Expenses

A lafaralunisliiuanisuay
UFN3

Service and administrative
expenses 136.29 15.29 186.58 21.56 131.26 16.40

nilgayuarnilaedaazaey
Bad debts and doubtful
accounts 205.36 23.04 118.89 13.74 125.15 15.64

WANUAINATIINULRUNTWE
AN

Loss on disposals of foreclosed
assets

shua g

Total Expenses

AlsAauA ldannsiunay
aEEule

Income before finance cost and
income tax 417.01 46.79 441.03 50.97 326.21 40.77

Al anm9n1sdu
Finance cost (74.66) (8.38) (75.03) (8.67) (84.73) | (10.59)

MEFFUldfuAAR
Corporate income tax 127.28 14.28 102.75 11.87 60.36
Alsanddrusuvna

Net income for the year

Alsaariuduiusiu (un)

Basis earnings per share
(Baht)
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s a o s
dnsrsrunivnstdungidag
Financial Ratio

A1 IUBAAIAIINT 50 TUN1511A1 15
Profitability Ratio

daseanidasu (%)

vield Rate 38.10 37.24 36.81 38.55
2 S o1l 0

daseanidaang (%) 6.29 5 88 6.81 6.59
Interest Rate

fHudrvdnsnanidis (%)

Net Yield Rate 31.81 31.36 30.00 31.96
dnsAlsgng (%)

Net Profit Rate 24.13 30.42 22.64 24.56
ST 't 8s 0,

dannanauunugfay (%) 18.23 27.35 21.58 27.72

Return on Equity

ansrar1unaavilssansnrnlunr1saiduviru

Efficiency Ratio

dasNanauLnunIunsne (%)
Return on Total Assets

8.64

11.18

8.35

9.47

dnsnsuNuaIluUNIwe (Lvin)
Total Assets Turn Over Ratio (Times)

0.36

0.37

0.37

0.39

BOTITIUTIATIZUUTEILNEINITETU

Financial Policy Ratio
Sasdruniidusagiugdariu (win)

0.72 1.62 1.26 .
Ratio of Liability to Equity (times) 1.98
danaudulvnsaiug (1vin)
Ratio of Total Receivable to Loan from (times) 1.82 1.69 1.62 1.2
1 3 o)
dasnsanadutiuna (%) 68.85 60.57 69.77 235

Dividend Rate

ATV IUAUNINTUNTNE

Asset Quality Ratio

famahuandaniavdoargaysadudasiy (%)
Ratio of Allowance for Doubtful Debt to Total 13.20 8.65 8.92 5.96
Receivable
fandunigesadudanu (%)

g 4 2.91 42 .
Ratio of Bad Debt to Total Receivable 645 9 3 213
ST o & o) 0,
ams."nz\hutﬁu‘Mﬁuvﬂaﬁwqmngﬁu’l,mmaﬁurifasm (%) 5 76 480 437 3901
Ratio of Non performing loan to Total Receivable
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‘u’%ﬁ‘mﬂsznauﬁsﬁan'lﬂﬁu’%n'\sé%uvfiaL?.i'm"fasnﬁnsﬂ'mﬂuﬁ“tummns,aLMW°1 wazdinana
aaanauonialnaidas denalandninannnsivihdasadnseuauddofissasnainissiautisyen
aesadnsenusudandygidandolssana 27 dau il 2553 Suusadnsenuausdiian
netdaulmilungonnunuasuazdsuana d4ruu 378,311 du Taauenaslsaaay 14.82 anil
2552 annsfludizacAsesiatan witaalulssanaasidyninissiaslulasnasiuuayilseauy
HTamanadalulesingd

g wisutl 2554 3nwusadnsenuaudiaansdaulnilunsonnumuasuazliuama fiuu
390,862 du TaeAndusanay 3.32 a1nil 2553 dosdniniiknénaianisali Tasawiaudnda
nsinannfaaseluglungomnwuvinuasiuzielesuna 4 vinlianusdasaisdaneanedn aaued
Ts99uzadnans alng lafunansznulaaaservintvligiuisadtfiunisndalaatloiau
Usgdnanin doanaasdodonansenusaiiiasaudelesing 1 uasll 2555

dnfull 2555 AaI A wNUaAEIKATIN UNAzARUNNALNL TaNa’guAIT NNAUGDINTT
sadnsEnuaUEnAIIINASAAA RIS uTaunanasgdeasnssiuliitAinnisidanaludsana warsian
Aanan19nIsnEasAdeiuun Tiuis sHutladanaralszaisiaraanionisifuinuaciAsesia
Taasu lauaAsegAanlsdidirnaanudaaulunatadsanauazfonianisalnansenu'la'le
wsegAaalsnideaglusenineflud dofosasiladuaznsenuiaaasesanianissvaan was

ussEnnANINsiasiidoaaiiuiiogmi3assalal

Tuaeilisruanayvinisiiaslulsaindisuadanaia UaI1NA1TEANAY WHATNIIN
wWswgAalandonsnadunisuenadivaddsesialng Taaiulddadouslasuna 3 tHusduun
salflagaudvlesing 4 dodssmadasissaudusaRifannsadunausoigalusauvaraduil f9na
TFrurnIn1stiuuaznaniIssfiunuaadusEn anadsanniiriuu Taaluil 2553 us¥niignui
fuidaihdaaniwindu 2,410.05 aunnidnduanndutl 2552 Aailusanas 26.74 ueusiitl 2554
vsdnfignuildudaihdaguawvindu 1,915.75 aruuimanasanndull 2553 dailusasay 20.51
wiat9lsAnuusEndonafisaldiifuinattosaiias Taaluil 2553 us¥wnisaldsIuvindy
865.32 @ uu1n winduanntl 2552 desateasiuvindu 800.21 arurimviavindudaidusanay
8.1 & syl 2554 usEnisnalasinindgu 891.26 auwn vinduannil 2553 Aaiflusanay 3 a1

SRz aaad9il
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Explanation and Analysis of Financial Position and Performance

The Company operates motorcycle hire-purchase financing business in Bangkok &
Metropolitan and the vicinity provincial areas in which the main income also comes from such
business. The average installment payment period of the motorcycles hire-purchase contract is
about 27 months. In the year 2010, the number of new registered motorcycle in Bangkok &
Metropolitan were 378,311 units which was 14.82% increase from the year 2009 from the
recovery of world economics despite the internal political problem arising in the third quarter
and the flood problem in the fourth quarter.

In the year 2011, the amount of new motorcycles registration in Bangkok & Metropolitan
were 390,862 units which was 3.32% increased from the year 2010 and was below the
expected target. The main reason was the flood crisis in Bangkok in the fourth quarter which
slow down the demand while the major manufacturers of motorcycle who had a direct impact
could not continue their production in full capacity. This impact might continue until the first
quarter of 2012.

As for the year 2012, the overall industry is expected to recover and be able to grow
from the need of motorcycle after the flood crisis coupled with the government policy to
stimulate expenses within the country as well as the agricultural crops prices which still shows
good trend. However, the negative factors which might deteriorate the overall economic
growth such as the uncertainty of European economic crisis which impact is still unpredictable
and the US economics which is still under recovery period both of which will have direct impact
on the export industry as well as the political sentiment which is still the prolonged problem.

During the past year, political problem of the country had gradually been resolved after
the election. However, the world economy is still threatening the Thai economic growth. This
was clearly shown since the third quarter to the fourth quarter in which Thailand had faced with
the greatest flood disaster ever happened within the past decades causing the decreases in
financial status and the operating results of the Company from the previous year. In 2010, the
net hire-purchase receivables of the Company recorded 2,410.05 million Baht increased 26.74%
from the end of the year 2009 while in 2011, it was 1,915.75 million Baht or a decrease of
20.51% from the end of 2010. However, the Company’s income still grows continuously. In
2010, the Company’s net income was 865.32 million Baht which increased from the year 2009
which was 800.21 million Baht or an increase of 8.1%. For the year 2011, the net income was
891.26 million Baht or an increase of 3% from the year 2010 which details are shown below.
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865.32

Seldnannattndauay 824.15 92.47 802.77 92.77 742.16 92.75
°1nr;m‘ay°1.hsx
se'laau 67.11 7.53 62.55 7.23 58.05 7.25

891.26 | 100.00

100.00 800.21  100.00

nnTassasvnalavasdinissnasasay 90  duneldsanuaihdauasuasiaudise
Toatuil 2553 seldpanwaihdauasinasautise  (Aadlusasay 92.77 wasne'lédnu) windu
802.77 &uww winduanntl 2552 denaldnanwazhdauasuasiauiisavindy 742.16 s uun
(Aonflusanay 92.75 aaenelasiu) wiaiududadiusanas 8.10 annnsifiuTauadgnuiiznda

dmsuill 2554 e'ldaanuaithdavasanasautssvindy 824.15 awuum (Aadlusasay
92.47 wasne'lamu) wWinduannil 2553 deneldaannaithdavasananautise windu 802.77 au
rvvdavintudaiilusasay 2.66 nnmsdulazasqauiiihdaluielesing 4 waell 2553 was
lesuna 1 wavil 2554

udl 2553 ws¥niisnaleduq windu 62.55 a@uuv winduannil 2552 deseledu 9
Windu 58.05 auwunuiadailusanay 7.75 & wusull 2554 udEninglddug windu 67.11 &u
1 vinduainil 2553 daflusasay 7.30 Teansuinduaassaladdug du tAaannanswauIu
U3NIFUE19 WadmaaNuaraInvignd 1y sunsiiaunaziatyd dusu
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Hire purchase interest 824.15 92.47 802.77 92.77 742.16 92.75
and installment sales
income

Other Incomes 67.11 7.53 62.55 7.23 58.05 7.25
100.00 800.21

From the Company’s revenue structure, it shows that around 90% comes from hire
purchase interest and installment sales incomes. In the year 2010, the hire purchase interest
and installment sales incomes were 802.77 million Baht (or 92.77% of total revenues) which
increased 8.10% from the year 2009 which recorded 742.16 million Baht (or 92.75% of total
revenues) from the growth of the hire-purchase portfolio.

In the year 2011, hire purchase interest and installment sales incomes were 824.15
million Baht (or 92.47% of total revenues) which increased from the year 2010 which recorded
802.77 million Baht or an increase of 2.66% from the growth of the hire purchase portfolio of
QT4/2010 and QT1/2011.

In the year 2010, the Company’s other incomes were 62.55 million Baht which increased
from the year 2009 which recorded the other incomes of 58.05 million Baht or an increase of
7.75%. As for 2011, other incomes were recorded at 67.11 million Baht which increased from
the year 2010 by 7.30% resulted from the expenses on services development of the Company’s
facilities rendered to the customers such as registration and closing account services.
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Service and administrative

expenses 136.29 | 15.29 186.58 | 21.56 131.26 16.40

Bad debts and doubtful accounts 205.36 | 23.04 118.89 | 13.74 125.15 15.64

Loss on disposals of foreclosed

assets 132.60 | 14.88 118.81 | 13.73 217.59 | 27.19
_Total Expenses  474.28 53.21  424.28 49.03 | 474.00 59.23

Expenses before finance cost and corporate income tax comprises of 3 parts : service
and administrative expenses, bad debts and doubtful accounts and loss on disposals of
foreclosed assets. In the year 2010, the Company had expenses before finance cost and
corporate income tax of 424.28 million Baht (or 49.03% of total revenues) which decreased
from the year 2009 which was 474.00 million Baht or a decrease of 10.49%. Such decreases
were mainly from the loss on disposals of foreclosed assets which arising from the foreclosed
assets amount deducted by the amount of assets sold on auction which decreased by 54.60%.

For the year 2011, the Company’s expenses before finance cost and corporate income
tax were recorded at 474.28 million Baht ( or 53.21% of the total revenues) which increased
from the year 2010 which had 424.28 million Baht or an increase of 11.78%. The increase of
expenses before finance cost and corporate income tax for the year 2011 was resulted from the
following main reason:

- Bad debts and doubtful accounts which comprised of bad debts and allowance for
doubtful accounts was set aside higher compared to the year 2010 or increased by
72.73%. The reason of the setting aside of allowance for doubtful accounts very
high was from the impact from the flood situation in the fourth quarter which should
be a short impact as most of the customers were still capable of paying their
installments.
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Loss on disposals of foreclosed assets which calculated from the value of foreclosed
assets deducted by the value of assets sold on auction increased by 11.60%
compared to the year 2010. When compared the ratio between the loss on
disposals of foreclosed assets and the hire purchase receivables for the year 2011,
the ratio was 6.01% increased from the year 2010 which was 4.50%. In addition,
the repossessed motorcycles from each financial year were sold as soon as possible
in order to reduce any more loss. When compared the ratio between the foreclosed
assets and the foreclosed assets for sale from each financial year, we will see that
the ratio was quite constant at the rate of 94-98%, detailed as follows:

The Ratio of the selling of foreclosed assets to foreclosed assets for sale

Balance at the beginning of period 698 301 454
Unit increasing in the period 11344 11895 15,858
Foreclosed Asset for Sales 12042 12196 16,312
Units Sold 11416 11498 16,011
Balance at the end of period 626 698 301

the ratio of foreclosed asset to

o) (o) 0,
foreclosed asset for sell 95% 94% 98%

Services and administrative expenses for the year 2011 decreased compared to the
year 2010 resulted from the reducing of the credit granting while the total revenues
of the year 2011 increased only slightly from the year 2010. The ratio of services
and administrative expenses to total revenues decreased from 21.56% in the year
2010 to 15.29% in the year 2011.
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For the year 2010, the Company’s interest expense was 65.03 million Baht decreased
from 70.73 million Baht in the year 2009 or a decrease of 8.06% despite the increasing in
the long-term loan from financial institution from 1,037 million Baht to 1,418 million Baht to
support the hire purchase of motorcycle financing growth. Since the cost of loan from
financial institutions was an average of 5.88% which decreased from the year 2009 which
was 6.81%, the total interest expenses also decreased.

For the year 2011, the Company had interest expenses of 74.66 million Baht which
increased from 65.03 million Baht in the year 2010 or an increase of 14.81%. Although the
long-term loan from financial institution decreased to 884 million Baht from 1,418 million
Baht due to the slow down of the hire purchase portfolio expansion, because the cost of loan
from the financial institution was an average of 6.29% increased from the year 2010 from
the average cost of 5.88%, the total interest expenses also increased.

In the year 2010, the Company had a net income before financial cost and income
tax 441.03 million Baht increasing from 326.21 million Baht of the year 2009 or an increase
of 35.20%

In the year 2011, the net income before financial cost and income tax was 417.01
million Baht decreasing from the year 2010 by 5.45% due mainly to the increasing of the
bad debt and doubtful accounts and after deducting the financial cost, the Company had a
net profit before corporate income tax of 342.36 million Baht which decreased from the year
2010 which was 366 million Baht or a decrease of 6.46%.

However, after deducting the corporate income tax, the Company’s net profit as of
2011 was 215.08 million Baht decreasing from 263.25 million Baht of the year 2010 or a
decrease of 18.30% due to the resolution of the cabinet in October, 2011, to decrease the
corporate income tax from 30% to 23% for the year 2012 and to 20% from 2013 onwards.
Consequently, in December, in order to comply with the resolution of the cabinet, the
decreasing in tax rate for 2012 — 2014 were enacted through the royal decree. The
Company’s financial statement had reflected the impact on the income tax rate changes
through the re-calculation of the deferred tax. (details were stated in the note to financial
statement No. 13)

Effects of changes in the new applicable tax rate through the deferred tax asset re-
calculation is increasing of income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive
income statement THB 24.58 million which is also a major reason for a decreasing of the net
profit.
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Profitability Ratio

unit : %
Yield Rate 38.10 37.24 36.81
Interest Rate 6.29 5.88 6.81
Net Yield Rate 31.81 31.36 30.00
Net Profit rate 24.13 30.42 22.64

As of 2010, the Company had a net income after tax 263.25 million Baht with the
number of issued and paid-up ordinary shares of 56.42 million shares at 5 Baht par value,
earnings per share was 4.67 Baht per share (average ordinary share 56.35 million shares) or an
increasing of 42.12% compared to the year 2009.

On January 7, 2008 the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting no. 1/2008 approved the
resolution to increase the Company’s capital of 10 million shares at 5 Baht par value each,
allocated 9 million shares for the existing shareholders according to shareholding ratio at the
rate 5 existing ordinary shares to 1 new ordinary share and allocated 1 million shares for the
exercising of warrant to buy ordinary share which issued to directors and employee under ESOP
No. 1. And the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting No. 2/2008 held on October 27", 2008
approved the resolution to increase the capital of 24.8 million shares at 5 Baht par value each,
by allocating 24.3 million shares for the exercising of the warrants to purchase ordinary share of
the Company No.2 (GL-W1) which issued to the existing shareholders according to shareholding
ratio (20 existing common shares to 9 units of warrant), warrant term 3 years expiring date on
December 30, 2011. The rest 0.5 million shares were allocated for the exercising of warrant to
buy ordinary share which issued to directors and employee under ESOP No.2. In addition, the
AGM held on April 21%, 2009 had approved the resolution to increase the Company’s registered
capital for 6.5 million shares in which 6 million shares were allocated for Private Placement and
500,000 shares were reserved for the exercise of warrant to buy ordinary share which issued to
directors and employees under ESOP No.3.

As at the end of 2011, the Company operated a net profit after tax of 215.08 million
Baht divided into 62.32 million ordinary shares and fully paid up at 5 Baht par value each or an
earning per share of 3.65 Baht per share ( the average ordinary share of 58.93 million shares)
which was 18.30% decreasing when compared to the year 2010.
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Financial Position
Assets

As at the end of 2010, the Company’s total assets recorded 2,668.49 million Baht
increasing from the end of 2009 which had 2,062.53 million Baht for 605.96 million or an
increase of 29.38%. Motorcycle hire purchase and installment sales receivable which were
the main assets were recorded at 2,410.05 million Baht (or 90.32% of the total assets)
which increased from the end of 2009 which recorded at 1,901.56 million Baht by 508.49
million Baht or an increase of 26.74%.

As at the end of 2011, the Company had a total assets of 2,332.75 million Baht which
decreased from the total assets of 2,668.49 million Baht of the end of 2010 or the decrease
of 335.74 million Baht or 12.58%. Motorcycle hire purchase and installment sales
receivables which were the main assets were recorded at 1,915.75 million Baht (or 82.12%
of total assets) which decreased from the year 2010 which had 2,410.05 million Baht by
494.30 million Baht or a decrease of 20.51%.

Debt quality and provision of allowances for doubtful debts

The Company had set aside the allowance for hire purchase and installment sales
receivable which is the main accounts receivable of the Company as of 2011, 2010, and 2009
as follow :

Accounts Receivable- Hire Purchase as of December 31, 2011

Aging of Hire — Purchase Accounts Receivable and % Allowance for % Allowance
Accounts Receivable Accrued Income after doubtful debt  for doubtful
deducting hire purchase (Million Baht) debt
Interest income, VAT

and Deposit for loss
from customer

(million Baht)
Not exceed one installment 1,675.67 75.92 16.38 1.00
Past due 2-3 installments 258.69 11.72 5.10 2.00
Past due 4-6 installments 164.45 7.45 162.71 100.00
Past due 7-12 installments 87.23 3.95 86.52 100.00
Past due over 12 installments 21.01 0.95 20.59 100.00
Total 2,207.05 100.00 291.30 13.20
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Accounts Receivable- Hire Purchase as of December 31, 2010

Aging of Hire — Purchase
Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable
and Accrued Income
after deducting hire
purchase Interest
income, VAT and
Deposit for loss
from customer
(million Baht)

Allowance for
doubtful debt
(Million Baht)

% Allowance for
doubtful debt

2,638.39 | 100.00

Not exceed one 2,240.33 84.91 21.73 1.00
installment

Past due 2-3 installments 192.20 7.29 3.78 2.00
Past due 4-6 installments 112.24 4.25 110.68 100.00
Past due 7-12 installments 70.19 2.66 69.17 100.00
Past due over 12 23.42 0.89 22.99 100.00
installments

Accounts Receivable- Hire Purchase as of December 31, 2009

Aging of Hire — Purchase
Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable
and Accrued Income
after deducting hire
purchase Interest
income, VAT and
Deposit for loss
from customer
(million Baht)

Allowance for

doubtful debt
(Million Baht)

% Allowance for

doubtful debt

2,087.86 | 100.00

Not exceed one 1,741.88 83.43 16.83 1.00
installment

Past due 2-3 installments 176.56 8.46 3.45 2.00
Past due 4-6 installments 99.57 4.77 97.56 100.00
Past due 7-12 installments 53.17 2.55 51.94 100.00
Past due over 12 16.69 0.80 16.51 100.00
installments
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Appropriation of allowance for doubtful debt

The Company uses the criteria from the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors
of Thailand No. Sor. Nor. 111/2547 RE: The Setting of Allowance for Doubtful Debt of the
Consumer Finance Business as the policy in setting the allowance for doubtful debt of the
Company.

Aging of Hire — Purchase Accounts Receivable

Comparing between the end of 2009 and 2010, the hire purchase and installment
sales receivables ratio - past due not exceeding one installment increased from 83.43% to
84.91%, the past due over 2-3 installments decreased from 8.46% to 7.29% and the past
due from 4 installments decreased from 8.12% to 7.80%, respectively.

When compared between the end of 2011 and 2010, the hire purchase and
installment sales receivables ratio - past due not exceeding one installment decreased from
84.91% to 75.92%, the past due over 2-3 installments increased from 7.28% to 11.72% and
the past due from 4 installments increased from 7.80% to 12.35%, respectively.

Allowance for doubtful debt

As at the end of 2010 the allowance for doubtful debt was 228.34 million Baht
increased from 186.30 million Baht or an increase of 22.57% due to the increasing in past
due not exceeding one installment which the portion is more than 85% of total hire purchase
and installment sales receivable which increased from 1,741.88 million Baht at the end of
2009 to 2,240.33 million Baht at the end of the year 2010 or an increase of 28.69%.

As at the end of 2011, the allowance for doubtful debt was 291.30 million Baht
increased from 228.34 million Baht or 27.57% caused by the past due for 4-6 installments
which needs to reserve 100% allowance for doubtful debt had increased from 110.68 million
Baht as of the end of 2010 to 162.71 million Baht as at 2011 year end or an increase of
47.01% which was due mainly from the flood crisis in the fourth quarter.

As at the end of the year 2010 the Company's total liabilities recorded 1,657.93 million
Baht increased from 1,148.36 million baht from the end of 2009 for 509.57 million Baht or an
increase of 44.37% which was used for portfolio expansion.

As at the end of 2011, the Company’s total liabilities were 983.28 million Baht
decreasing from 1,657.93 million Baht at the end of 2010 for 674.65 million Baht or a decrease
of 40.69% from the continuous repayment of long-term loan to the financial institutions until
some accounts were fully settled together with the slow down of the new portfolio expansion
resulted in the decreasing of the need for new loan.
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As of the end of the year 2010, the shareholders' equity increased to 1,010.56 million Baht
comprised of issued and paid-up capital of 282.08 million Baht, share premium 192.19 million Baht,
warrant to buy ordinary share 4.38 million Baht and the retained earning of 531.91 million Baht. Totally,
the shareholders’ equity had increased from the year 2009 for 96.38 million Baht or an increase of
10.54%. This was due to the exercising of warrant that caused the issued and paid-up capital increased
for 1.25 million Baht and the share premium increased 4.35 million Baht as well as the retained earning
which increased 90.65 million Baht from the net profit of 263.25 million Baht deducted by dividend paid
for 2009 operating result and the interim dividend payment from the 1Q — 3Q of the year 2010
amounted 172.60 million Baht.

As at the end of 2011, the Company’s shareholders’ equity recorded 1,349.48 million Baht
comprised of the issued and paid-up capital of 311.61 million Baht, share premium of 293.66 million
Baht, warrant to buy ordinary share of 2.01 million Baht, the share subscription received in advance
(from the last exercising of GL-W1 as of 30 Dec, 2011 in which the increasing capital has not been
registered ) of 149.50 million Baht and the retained earnings of 592.70 million Baht. The shareholders’
equity had increased 338.92 million Baht from the year 2010 or an increase of 33.54%. This came from
the exercising of warrant 129.92 million Baht which had increased the issued and paid-up capital for
29.52 million Baht and resulted in the increasing of the share premium of 100.40 million Baht. In
addition, this also caused by the increasing of the retained earnings of 60.79 million Baht from the net
profit of 215.08 million Baht deducted by the amount of dividend paid for 2010 operating result as well as
the interim dividend payment for the first half of the year 2011 totaled 154.29 million Baht.

As of the year 2010, the net cash flows used for operating activities were 247.82 million Baht
which came from the Income received from operating activities before the changes in operating assets
and liabilities of 703.71 million Baht and from the increasing in motorcycle hire purchase receivables from
the expansion of the portfolio of 627.37 million Baht and the increasing of assets foreclosed of 133.85
million Baht. The Company had net cash flows used in investment activities amounted 14.54 million Baht
from the acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and the net cash flows for financing activities
amounted 261.45 million Baht which came from the cash receipts from long-term loan of 1,350 million
Baht and the repayment of long term loan of 969.25 million Baht which resulted to the decreasing of
cash and cash equivalent for the year 2010 by 899.90 million Baht so that the outstanding cash and cash
equivalent as of the end of the year was 868.42 million Baht.

As for the year 2011, the Company’s net cash flow used for operating activities was 670.98
million Baht which came from the net profit from the operating result before assets and liabilities changes
of 762.10 million Baht. The motorcycle hire purchase receivables decreased 288.94 million Baht and the
assets foreclosed increased by 130.14 million Baht. The Company’s net cash flow used in investment
activities was 1.54 million Baht which came from the purchasing of properties of 6.67 million Baht and
cash flow receipts from the properties disposal of 5.20 million Baht. The Company’s net cash flow used
in financing activities was 482.35 million Baht which came from the cash receipts from long-term loan of
365 million Baht, the repayment of long-term loan of 898.27 million Baht and the short-term loan as well
as the overdraft accounts also decreased by 72.92 million Baht. Cash flow receipts from the warrant
exercising was 129.91 million Baht and the share subscription received in advance (from the last warrant
exercise but the paid-up capital has not been registered) was 148.21 million Baht. Nevertheless, there
was a payment of dividend of 154.29 million Baht, the cash and cash equivalent in the year 2011
increased by 187.09 million Baht so that the cash and cash equivalent as of the end of the year had the
outstanding balance of 187.96 million Baht.
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For the capital structure at the end of the years 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s
debt to equity ratio were 0.73 times, 1.62 times and 1.26 times, respectively. Such ratio
decreased in the year 2011 due to the continuous repayment of loan while there has not been
much new borrowings due to the slow down of motorcycle hire purchase financing, detailed as
follow :

1. The decreasing of outsource funding such as bank overdrafts, promissory notes and
long-term loan from the banks which was paid back by installments at floating rate
close to MLR and some with fixed interest rate of 6.60 - 6.85 per annum. The
Company’s liabilities decreased from 1,657.93 million Baht in 2010 to 983.28 million
Baht as at the end of 2011 or a decrease of 674.65 million Baht or 40.69%

2 The increasing of capital from internal source in 2011 from the increasing of
shareholders’ equity from 1,010.56 million Baht in 2010 to 1,349.48 million Baht or
an increase of 338.92 million Baht or 33.54% which came from the increasing of
issued and paid up capital 29.52 million Baht and the increasing in share premium of
101.47 million Baht from warrant exercising, and from an increasing of retained
earnings 60.79 million Baht from the net profit of 215.08 million Baht deducted by
dividend payment for the year 2010 operating result and the interim dividend
payment from the operating result of the first half of the year 2011 for the total of
154.29 million Baht
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The Board of Directors of Group Lease Public Company Limited is responsible for the
Company'’s financial statement and all financial information presented in the annual report. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standard in Thailand, which are based on appropriate accounting policies and careful
forecasting practically suitable for the real business operation. All material information has
been sufficiently disclosed in the notes to financial statements which based on the regulation of
the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The independent

auditor has audited and expressed an unqualified audit opinion on those financial statements.

In order to ensure the correctness, completeness and sufficiency of the Company’s
financial & accounting information and to prevent possible risks from the operation, the Board
of Directors has set up effective internal control system and appointed Audit Committee which
comprised of Independent Directors to take care and be accountable for the quality of the
Company’s financial report as well as internal control systems. The opinion of the Audit

Committee was stated in the Report of the Audit Committee appeared in this annual report.

The Board of Directors, therefore, views that financial statement of Group Lease Public
Company Limited as at December 31st, 2011 can transparently reflect the Company’s financial

position which is useful for all shareholders and other stakeholders.
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2554 2553
187,955,970 868,417
676,415,286 1,227,871,783
15,415,888 17,482,797
54,475,675 72,113,291
934,262,819 1,318,336,288
306,830 268,598

1,239,334,039
56,295,628
65,509,469

37,043,005

1,182,177,315
59,026,233
80,990,611

27,694,679

1,398,488,971

1,350,157,436

2,332,751,790

2,668,493,724
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2554 2553

- 72,921,439

3,304,715 3,800,250
694,953,333 788,126,025
46,019,450 63,515,509
7,270,559 15,446,334
6,441,316 15,263,654

- 18,653,628
21,557,180 22,470,925
779,546,553 1,000,197,764
189,366,667 629,458,975
1,735,106 3,518,625
2,428,973 2,999,067
10,197,704 21,759,123
203,728,450 657,735,790
983,275,003 1,657,933,554
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2554 2553
824,154,007 802,770,766
67,108,585 62,545,061
891,262,592 865,315,827
136,288,889 186,580,734
205,361,867 118,888,740
132,598,963 118,811,813
474,249,719 424,281,287
417,012,873 441,034,540
(74,657,512) (75,032,333)
342,355,361 366,002,207
(127,277,776) (102,749,168)
215,077,585 263,253,039
215,077,585 263,253,039
3.65 4.67
58,926,163 56,348,138
3.63 4.25
59,199,375 61,919,676
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2554 2553

342,355,361 366,002,207
7,900,785 7,835,899
205,361,867 118,888,740
(3,693,864) 12,632
132,598,963 118,811,813
(392,477) 4,950,423
3,308,161 22,172,253
74,657,512 65,032,333
762,096,308 703,706,300

288,937,906 (627,365,980)

(130,139,577)

(133,853,635)

17,637,616 (32,140,874)
(9,320,173) (3,826,674)
(495,535) 2,303,875
(8,175,775) 225,486
(8,675,184) 5,423,356
(23,745,308) -
(913,745) 6,509,317
(570,094) (3,999,068)
886,636,439 (83,017,897)

(74,804,666)
(140,854,112)

(64,924,780)
(99,872,696)

670,977,661

(247,815,373)
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2554 2553
(38,232) (3,287)
- 2,000,000
(28,153) (16,907)
5,195,832 10,124
(6,672,148) (16,526,527)
(1,542,701) (14,536,597)
(72,921,439) 47,574,980

365,000,000 1,350,000,000
(898,265,000) (969,254,000)
129,914,900 5,729,438
148,211,655 -
(154,287,523) (172,598,348)
(482,347,407) 261,452,070
187,087,553 (899,900)

868,417 1,768,317
187,955,970 868,417
2,362,697 49,821
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Report and financial statements
31 December 2011 and 2010



Report of Independent Auditor
To the Shareholders of Group Lease Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Group Lease Public
Company Limited as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management as to their correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Group Lease Public Company Limited as at
31 December 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the

years then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial statements, | draw attention to the
matter as discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, during the current year, the
Company adopted the revised and new accounting standard issued by the Federation of
Accounting Professions, and applied them in its preparation and presentation of the

financial statements.

Pimjai Manitkajohnkit
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4521

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 13 February 2012



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current portion of hire purchase and
installment sales receivables

Assets foreclosed

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Pledged fixed deposit at financial institution

Hire purchase and installment sales
receivables - long-term portion

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

8, 15

10

11

8 15
12
13

(Unit: Baht)
2011 2010
187,955,970 868,417
676,415,286 1,227,871,783
15,415,888 17,482,797
54,475,675 72,113,291
934,262,819 1,318,336,288
306,830 268,598

1,239,334,039
56,295,628
65,509,469
37,043,005

1,182,177,315
59,026,233
80,990,611
27,694,679

1,398,488,971

1,350,157,436

2,332,751,790

2,668,493,724

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft and short-term loans from

financial institutions 14
Trade accounts payable
Current portion of long-term loans 16
Corporate income tax payable
Insurance premium payables
Accrued expenses
Provision for short-term liabilities

Provision for employee compensation 17
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans, net of current portion 16
Provision for long-term liabilities

Reserve for long-term employee benefits 17
Cash guarantee for damage on hire purchase agreements
Deferred tax liabilities 13
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

(Unit: Baht)

2011 2010
- 72,921,439
3,304,715 3,800,250
694,953,333 788,126,025
46,019,450 63,515,509
7,270,559 15,446,334
6,441,316 15,263,654
- 18,653,628
21,557,180 22,470,925
779,546,553 1,000,197,764
189,366,667 629,458,975
1,735,106 3,518,625
2,428,973 2,999,067
10,197,704 21,759,123
203,728,450 657,735,790
983,275,003 1,657,933,554

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

Shareholders' equity
Share capital 18
Registered
86,300,000 ordinary shares of Baht 5 each
Issued and paid-up
62,321,196 ordinary shares of Baht 5 each
(2010: 56,416,996 ordinary shares of Baht 5 each)

Share premium 18
Share subscription received in advance 18.1
Warrants 18, 19

Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 21
Unappropriated

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

(Unit: Baht)

2011 2010
431,500,000 431,500,000
311,605,980 282,084,980
293,657,127 192,189,327
149,500,452 -
2,013,904 4,376,601
43,150,000 43,150,000
549,549,324 488,759,262

1,349,476,787

1,010,560,170

2,332,751,790

2,668,493,724

0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors

0



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive income
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Profit or loss
Revenues
Hire purchase interest income
Other income
Total revenues
Expenses
Selling and administrative expenses 15
Bad debts and doubtful accounts 8
Loss on disposals of foreclosed assets
Total expenses
Profit before finance cost and
corporate income tax
Finance cost 16
Profit before corporate income tax
Corporate income tax 13

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share 23
Basis earnings per share
Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

Diluted earnings per share
Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

(Unit: Baht)
2011 2010

824,154,007 802,770,766
67,108,585 62,545,061
891,262,592 865,315,827
136,288,889 186,580,734
205,361,867 118,888,740
132,598,963 118,811,813
474,249,719 424,281,287
417,012,873 441,034,540
(74,657,512) (75,032,333)
342,355,361 366,002,207
(127,277,776) (102,749,168)
215,077,585 263,253,039
215,077,585 263,253,039
3.65 4.67
58,926,163 56,348,138
3.63 4.25
59,199,375 61,919,676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flows

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation
Bad debts and doubtful accounts
Loss (gain) on sales of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposals of assets foreclosed
Loss on diminution in value of assets foreclosed (reversal)
Provision for employee benefits
Interest expenses
Income from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Hire purchase and installment sales receivables
Assets foreclosed
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade accounts payable
Insurance premium payables
Accrued expenses
Provision for employee benefits
Other current liabilities
Guarantee for damage from hire purchase agreements
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities

(Unit: Baht)

2011 2010
342,355,361 366,002,207
7,900,785 7,835,899
205,361,867 118,888,740
(3,693,864) 12,632
132,598,963 118,811,813
(392,477) 4,950,423
3,308,161 22,172,253
74,657,512 65,032,333
762,096,308 703,706,300
288,937,906 (627,365,980)
(130,139,577) (133,853,635)
17,637,616 (32,140,874)
(9,320,173) (3,826,674)
(495,535) 2,303,875
(8,175,775) 225,486
(8,675,184) 5,423,356
(23,745,308) -
(913,745) 6,509,317
(570,094) (3,999,068)
886,636,439 (83,017,897)
(74,804,666) (64,924,780)
(140,854,112) (99,872,696)
670,977,661 (247,815,373)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flows (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in pledged fixed deposits at financial institutions
Proceeds from redemption of long-term investment
Increase in accounts receivable and
loans to employees
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in bank overdraft and
short-term loans from financial institutions
Cash receipt from long-term loans
Repayment of long-term loans
Cash receipt from exercise of warrants
Cash receipt from share subscription received in advance
Dividend paid
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (note 7)

Supplement cash flows information
Non-cash items
Issuance of ordinary shares during the year

from the exercise of warrants

(Unit: Baht)

011 2010
(38,232) (3,287)
- 2,000,000
(28,153) (16,907)
5,195,832 10,124
(6,672,148) (16,526,527)
(1,542,701) (14,536,597)

(72,921,439)
365,000,000
(898,265,000)
129,914,900
148,211,655
(154,287,523)

47,574,980
1,350,000,000

(969,254,000)
5,729,438

(172,598,348)

(482,347,407) 261,452,070
187,087,553 (899,900)
868,417 1,768,317
187,955,970 868,417
2,362,697 49,821

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

1. General information

Group Lease Public Company Limited (“the Company”)is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the
hire purchase of motorcycles and its registered address is 63 Soi 1,
Tesabalnimitretai Road, Ladyao, Chatujak, Bangkok and there are also 4 branches

in Rayong, Chonburi, Nakhonratchasrima and Ayutthaya.

The major shareholders of the Company are Engine Holdings Asia Pte. Ltd.
(incorporated in Singapore) and A.P.F Holding Company Limited (incorporated in
Thailand), which owns 43.98% and 22.70% of the Company’s share capital,
respectively. The parent company of the group is Wedge Holdings Company Limited

(incorporated in Japan).

On 20 April 2011, a meeting of the Board of Directors passed a resolution to accept
the resignation of the Managing Director, effective from 20 April 2011. The Board
also passed a resolution appointing a person to the position of General Manager, to

replace the Managing Director who resigned, effective from 25 April 2011.
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
standards enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547, except for the
Thai Accounting Standard No. 12 regarding “Income Taxes”, which the Company

had early adopted before the date of enforcement.

The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with the
stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated
28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial
statements of the Company. The financial statements in English language have

been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.



Adoption of new accounting standards

During the current year, the Company adopted a number of revised and new
accounting standards, issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions, as listed
below.

Accounting standards:

TAS 1 (revised 2009)
TAS 2 (revised 2009)
TAS 7 (revised 2009)
TAS 8 (revised 2009)
TAS 10 (revised 2009)
TAS 11 (revised 2009)
TAS 16 (revised 2009)
TAS 17 (revised 2009)
TAS 18 (revised 2009)
TAS 19

TAS 23 (revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)
TAS 26

TAS 27 (revised 2009)
TAS 28 (revised 2009)
TAS 29

TAS 31 (revised 2009)
TAS 33 (revised 2009)
TAS 34 (revised 2009)
TAS 36 (revised 2009)
TAS 37 (revised 2009)
TAS 38 (revised 2009)
TAS 40 (revised 2009)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

Events after the Reporting Period

Construction Contracts

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Interests in Joint Ventures

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Financial reporting standards:

TFRS 2
TFRS 3 (revised 2009)
TFRS 5 (revised 2009)

TFRS 6

Share-Based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 15

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate



Accounting Standard Interpretations:

SIC 31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

These accounting standards do not have any significant impact on the financial

statements, except for the following accounting standard.
TAS 19 Employee Benefits

This accounting standard requires employee benefits to be recognised as expense in
the period in which the service is performed by the employee. In particular, an entity
has to evaluate and make a provision for post-employment benefits using actuarial
techniques. The Company previously accounted for such employee benefits when
they were incurred. The management uses judgement and estimates the amounts to
be paid based on reasonable assumptions, using rates consistent with the provisions

of the Labour Law.

For the purposes of first time adoption to comply with TAS 19 “Employee benefits”,
the Company has immediately recognised the difference between liablities
estimation in accordance with TAS19 and the prior provision made by management
as an expense in profit or loss for the current year. The effect of this change is

immaterial to the Company’s financial statements.
New accounting standards issued during the years not yet effective

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the following new/revised
accounting standards that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

Accounting standards:

TAS 12 Income Taxes

TAS 20 (revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Accounting Standard Interpretations:

SIC10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
SIC21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

SIC25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

However, the Company has early adopted TAS 12. In addition, the Company’s
management believes that these accounting standards will not have any significant

impact on the financial statements for the year when they are initially applied.



5. Significant accounting policies

5.1

5.2

5.3

Revenue recognition

a)

b)

d)

Hire purchase interest income

Hire purchase interest income is recognised as income over the period of
payment, using the effective rate method, with income recognised when the
installments fall due irrespective of when actual collection is made. However,
recognition of interest income is ceased for receivables which have defaulted on

more than 4 scheduled installment payments.

Penalty income

Penalty income is recognised when received.

Other fee income

Fee for other services is recognised as income on an accrual basis.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on effective interest

rate.

Expense recognition

a)

b)

Interest expenses

Interest expenses are charged to expenses on an accrual basis. Interest included
in face value of note payable is amortised to expenses evenly throughout the

term of the notes.
Commissions and direct expenses of the hire purchase contracts.

The Company recognises initial commissions and direct expenses arising in
respect of hire purchase contracts as expenses by amortising them over the
installment period using the effective interest rate method, with amortisation

presented as a deduction from hire purchase interest income.

Unearned interest income is stated net of initial commissions and direct

expenses of hire purchase contracts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid

investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to

withdrawal restrictions.



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Hire purchase and instaliment sales receivables

Hire purchase and installment sales receivables are stated at the net realisable
value. Unearned hire purchase interest income are deducted from hire purchase and
installment sales receivables. The Company provides allowance for doubtful
accounts at the percentage of the amount of outstanding receivables net of

unearned hire purchase interest income, based on the number of months overdue.
Assets foreclosed

These represent assets repossessed from hire purchase and installment sales
receivables and are stated at the lower of cost (which mostly comprises the net
outstanding balance) and estimated net realisable value. Allowance is made for the

decline in value of the repossessed assets.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any). Depreciation of
buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line

basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20 years
Building improvement and lease area 10 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Depreciation for computers, equipment and motor vehicles is calculated by the
reference to their costs, using the sum of the years’ digits method over useful lives of

3 - 5 years.
Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided for land.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal of an asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the

asset is derecognised.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled
by, the Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control

with the Company.



5.8

5.9

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly
own a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the

planning and direction of the Company’s operations.
Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Company estimates the assets recoverable amount. An assets
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and written down to its recoverable
amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information
available, reflects the amount that the Company could obtain from the disposal of the
asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after

deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are

recognised as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employee and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a
separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when

incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance

payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.



5.10

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by management, using
the projected unit credit method. Such determination is made based on various
assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, staff turnover rate,

mortality rate, and inflation rates.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

For the purposes of first time adoption to comply with TAS 19 “Employee benefits”,
the Company has immediately recognised the difference between liablities
estimation in accordance with TAS19 and the prior provision made by management
as an expense in profit or loss for the current year. The effect of this change is

immaterial to the Company’s financial statements.
Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to
the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax
legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,

using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences
while it recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses
carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates

to items that are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.



5.11 Interest rate swap contracts

The net amounts of interest to be received from or paid to the counterparty under the
interest rate swap contracts is recognised as income or expenses on an accrual

basis.

5.12 Provisions

6.1

6.2

6.3

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles at times requires management to make subjective judgments
and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and
estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ.

The significant accounting judgments and estimates are as follows:
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance
lease, the management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into

consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management has estimated
the percentage of the allowance for doubtful accounts for each age of receivable on
the basis of historical statistical data, assessment of the risk associated with the
receivable, the nature of the collateral provided, and actual losses arising from such

debtors in the past, while emphasising the principal of conservatism.
Diminution in value of assets foreclose

In determining diminution in value of assets foreclose, management apply judgment
in estimating the anticipated losses on such assets, based on analysis of various
factors, including net realisable value, historical sales data, the age of the assets and

the prevailing economic condition.



6.4

6.5

6.6

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of temporary differences only to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which these
differences can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the

likely timing and level of estimate future profits.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to
make estimates of the useful lives and salvage values of the Company’s plant and
equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values when there are

any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period when it
is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying cost. This
requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to

the assets subject to the review.
Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including

discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
Cash 104 79
Bank deposits 187,852 789
Total 187,956 868

As at 31 December 2011, bank deposits in saving accounts carried interest 0.75%

per annum (2010: 0.25% per annum).
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8. Hire purchase and installment sales receivables

8.1 As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the balances of hire purchase and installment

sales receivables are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Current portion of Long-term portion of
hire purchase and instaliment hire purchase and installment
sales receivables sales receivables Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Normal receivables
Hire purchase and
installment sales receivables 1,373,121 2,000,698 1,467,291 1,570,327 2,840,412 3,571,025
Accrued hire purchase and installment
sales income 78,844 58,497 - - 78,844 58,497
Less: Unearned hire purchase and
installment sales income, net (663,786) (756,417) (190,180) (375,905) (853,966) (1,132,322)
Total normal receivable 788,179 1,302,778 1,277,111 1,194,422 2,065,290 2,497,200
Terminated agreements receivables
Hire purchase and installment sales
receivables 100,148 116,103 84,865 72,555 185,013 188,658
Accrued hire purchase and installment
sales income 14,597 14,402 - - 14,597 14,402
Less: Unearned hire purchase and
installment sales income, net (42,658) (41,880) (15,195) (19,990) (57,853) (61,870)
Total terminated agreements receivables 72,087 88,625 69,670 52,565 141,757 141,190
Total receivables 860,266 1,391,403 1,346,781 1,246,987 2,207,047 2,638,390
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (183,851) (163,531) (107,447) (64,810) (291,298) (228,341)
Hire purchase and installment
sales receivables, net 676,415 1,227,872 1,239,334 1,182,177 1,915,749 2,410,049

8.2 As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the balances of hire purchase and installment
sales receivables (net of unearned hire purchase income) and allowance for doubtful

accounts aged on the basis of due dates, are summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Percentage
of allowance
Hire purchase and installment set up by Allowance for doubtful Hire purchase and installment
Aging sales receivables the Company accounts sales receivables, net
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Hire purchase and installment sales receivables
Not yet due 1,438,968 2,041,280 1 14,053 19,784 1,424,915 2,021,496
Past due:
1 month 236,704 199,050 1 2,326 1,947 234,378 197,103
2 - 3 months 258,686 192,204 2 5,097 3,776 253,589 188,428
4 - 6 months 164,448 112,239 100 162,713 110,678 1,735 1,561
7 - 12 months 87,228 70,195 100 86,517 69,170 71 1,025
Over 12 months 21,013 23,422 100 20,592 22,986 421 436
Total 2,207,047 2,638,390 291,298 228,341 1,915,749 2,410,049

10



8.3 As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the future minimum lease payments receivable

8.4

8.5

8.6

under hire purchase agreements together with the present value of the net minimum

lease payments receivable are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
Minimum Present value Minimum Present value
payments of payments payments of payments
receivable receivable receivable receivable
Within one year 1,566,710 860,266 2,189,700 1,391,403
After one year but not more
than five years 1,552,156 1,346,781 1,642,882 1,246,987
Total minimum lease payments
receivable 3,118,866 2,207,047 3,832,582 2,638,390
Less: Amounts representing
finance charges (911,819) (1,194,192)
Present value of minimum lease
payments 2,207,047 2,638,390

The Company’s hire purchase agreements have terms of 1 - 3 years and require

settlement in equal installments.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had transferred rights of claim under hire
purchase agreements with outstanding balances (before net of unearned hire
purchase interest income) of Baht 1,696 million (2010: Baht 4,109 million), in order
to secure credit facilities granted by commercial banks as discussed in Notes 14 and
16.

On 30 April 2004, the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand,
with the approval of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
stipulated an accounting guideline for the consumer finance business, whereby
recognition of revenue is to cease for accounts receivable which are overdue by
more than 3 installments. However, this accounting guideline provides an alternative
whereby, in cases where a company believes that the guideline would not be
appropriate, it is to disclose the method it uses, together with the reasons.
The Company has a policy to cease recognising revenue from hire purchase
receivables which are overdue by more than 4 installments. If the Company had
followed this accounting guideline, the amount of revenue recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 would be reduced by Baht 11.27 million
and Baht 1.48 million, respectively. However, allowance is fully provided for

accounts receivable which are overdue by more than 3 installments and the

11



10.

11.

cessation of recognising revenue only from hire purchase receivables which are

overdue by more than 4 installments therefore has no significant effect to the

Company’s net income for the years.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, there are outstanding hire purchase receivable

amounting to approximately Baht 136.35 million and Baht 82.69 million, respectively

for which installment payments are more than 3 installments overdue but for which

revenue is still being recognised.

Assets foreclosed

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, assets foreclosed are presented as follows:

Repossessed assets
Less: Allowance for diminution in value of
assets foreclosed

Assets foreclosed, net

Other current assets

Accrued income

Prepaid expenses

Other receivable - sales of assets foreclosed
Undue input tax

Others

Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Other current assets, net

Pledged fixed deposit at financial institution

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
23,353 25,812
(7,937) (8,329)
15,416 17,483

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
3,271 5,741
41,676 50,343
10,618 15,940
- 1,657
1,437 958
57,002 74,639
(2,526) (2,526)
54,476 72,113

This represents fixed deposit pledged with bank for the issuance of letter of bank

guarantees for the Company, as discussed in Note 25.2.

12
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12. Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Building Furniture and Computers
improvement office and Motor

Land Buildings and lease area equipment equipment vehicles Total
Cost
31 December 2010 35,983 45,405 4,908 20,320 10,802 19,697 137,115
Additions - 148 125 638 347 5,413 6,671
Disposals - - - (79) (69) (11,198) (11,346)
31 December 2011 35,983 45,553 5,033 20,879 11,080 13,912 132,440
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2010 - 33,132 4,721 19,039 8,993 12,204 78,089
Depreciation for the year - 2,285 60 486 1,385 3,684 7,900
Depreciation on disposals - - - (51) (64) (9,730) (9,845)
31 December 2011 - 35,417 4,781 19,474 10,314 6,158 76,144
Net book value
31 December 2010 35,983 12,273 187 1,281 1,809 7,493 59,026
31 December 2011 35,983 10,136 252 1,405 766 7,754 56,296
Depreciation for the year
2011 7,900

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Building Furniture and Computers
improvement office and Motor

Land Buildings and lease area equipment equipment vehicles Total
Cost
31 December 2009 30,379 42,821 4,773 19,750 9,404 13,678 120,805
Additions 5,604 2,584 135 721 1,451 6,032 16,527
Disposals - - - (151) (53) (13) (217)
31 December 2010 35,983 45,405 4,908 20,320 10,802 19,697 137,115
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2009 - 30,984 4,643 18,760 7,001 9,059 70,447
Depreciation for the year - 2,148 78 407 2,045 3,158 7,836
Depreciation on disposals - - - (128) (53) (13) (194)
31 December 2010 - 33,132 4,721 19,039 8,993 12,204 78,089
Net book value
31 December 2009 30,379 11,837 130 990 2,403 4,619 50,358
31 December 2010 35,983 12,273 187 1,281 1,809 7,493 59,026
Depreciation for the year

2010 7,836
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13.

As at 31 December 2011, certain equipment items of the Company has been fully

depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount (before deducting

accumulated depreciation) of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 27.08

million (2010: Baht 30.02 million).

The Company has mortgaged land and construction thereon with a total net book
value as at 31 December 2011 of Baht 25.10 million (2010: Baht 27.06 million) as

collateral for bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions and

long-term credit facilities as discussed in Notes 14 and 16.

Corporate income tax/deferred tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are made

up as follows:

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Effects of changes in the applicable tax rates
Income tax expense reported in the statement of

comprehensive income

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

011 2010
123,358 126,626
(20,658) (16,807)

24,578 (7,070)
127,278 102,749

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit

multiplied by the applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2011 and

2010 is as follows.

Accounting profit before tax

Applicable tax rate

Accounting profit before tax multiplied by
applicable tax rate

Adjustment in respect of current income tax
of previous year

Effects of non-taxable income and expenses

Effects of changes in the applicable tax rates

Total income tax expenses reported in the statement
of comprehensive income

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
342,355 366,002
30% 30%
102,707 109,800
@) 19
24,578 (7,070)
127,278 102,749
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As of 31 December 2011 and 2010, the components of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts 63,337 71,839
Allowance for diminution of value foreclosed assets 1,825 2,499
Reserve for employee benefits 347 6,652
Total 65,509 80,990
Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaid commission expense 10,198 21,759
Total 10,198 21,759

In October 2011, the cabinet passed a resolution to reduce the corporate income tax
rate from 30% to 23% in 2012, and then to 20% from 2013. In addition, in order to
comply with the resolution of the cabinet, in December 2011, the decreases in tax
rates for 2012 - 2014 were enacted through a royal decree. The Company reflected
the changes in tax rates in its deferred tax calculation, as presented above.

Bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Interest rate

(% per annum) 2011 2010
Bank overdrafts MOR - 22,921
Short-term loans from financial institutions MLR, MOR - 50,000
Total - 72,921

As at 31 December 2010, bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial
institutions are secured by the transfer of rights of claim under hire purchase
agreements, the mortgage of land and the construction thereon and/or to be
constructed thereon in the future and motorcycle registrations as requested by the
lender.

The Company had repaid the bank overdraft and loans from financial institutions

balances during the year.
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15.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related
parties. Such transaction, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course
of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon

between the Company and those related parties.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010 Transfer pricing policy
Transactions with related companies
Hire purchase interest - 542  Contract price
Rental income 20 - Contract price
Interest expenses 45 - Atthe rates of 7.25% per
annum

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company has no balances with related

parties.

During the current year, the Company had loan from a related party. The movement
of loan from a related party was as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Balance as at Balance as at
31 December During the year 31 December
2010 Increase Decrease 2011
Loan from a related party
A.P.F. Holdings Company Limited - 5,000 (5,000)
Total - 5,000 (5,000)

Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company paid salaries, bonus,
meeting allowance, gratuities and reserve for short-term and long-term employee
benefits to its directors and management totaling Baht 19.9 million (2010: Baht 17.1

million).

Warrants for directors and management

On 20 May 2008, the Company issued 206,300 warrants (GL-WA) to subscribe to
the Company’s ordinary shares, to be allotted to 11 directors and management. This
represents 20.6% of the Company’s warrants. On 19 May 2011, 112,100 GL-WA

warrants which had not been exercised by the warrantholders and expired.
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On 4 February 2009, the Company issued 2,412,996 warrants (GL-W1) to subscribe
to the Company’s ordinary shares, to be allotted to 6 existing shareholders who are
directors and management. This represents 9.9% of the Company’s warrants. On
31 December 2011, 21,646 GL-WA warrants which had not been exercised by the

warrantholders.

On 10 May 2009, the Company issued 118,100 warrants (GL-WB) to subscribe to
the Company’s ordinary shares, to be allotted to 11 directors and management. This

represents 23.6% of the Company’s warrants.

On 10 May 2010, the Company issued 104,700 warrants (GL-WC) to subscribe to
the Company’s ordinary shares, to be alloted to 10 directors and management. This

represents 20.9% of the Company’s warrants.

As at 31 December 2011, there are outstanding warrants (GL-WB, GL-WC) to
subscribe to the Company's ordinary shares, to be allotted to existing directors and

management totaling 53,500 units and 48,600 units, respectively.
Long-term loans

The long-term loans, which the Company obtained from local financial institutions,

are as detailed below.

Interest rate

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Balance per annum Repayment condition
2011 2010

Loan agreement dated 28 April 2008

Credit facility No. 1 - 47,833 At the rate of Thirty equal installments, with first installment
MLR - 0.5% per due on the first interest payment date after
annum drawing down loans under credit facility

Loan agreement dated 29 January 2009

Credit facility No. 1 1,200 113,585 At the rate of Twenty seven equal installments, with first
MLR - 0.5% per installment due on the first interest payment
annum date after drawing down loans under credit

facility

Loan agreement dated 22 October 2009

Credit facility No. 1 320,667 720,667 At the rate of Thirty equal installments, with first installment
MLR - 0.75% due on the first interest payment date after
per annum drawing down loans under credit facility

Loan agreement dated 25 August 2010

Credit facility No. 1 470,833 535,500 At the rate of Thirty equal installments, with first installment
MLR - 1.0% per due on the first interest payment date after
annum drawing down loans under credit facility

Loan agreement dated 26 May 2011

Credit facility No. 1 91,620 - At the rate of Thirty equal installments, with first installment
MLR - 1.0% per due on the first interest payment date after
annum drawing down loans under credit facility

Total 884,320 1,417,585

Less: Current portion (694,953) (788,126)

Long-term loans, net of current

portion 189,367 629,459
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Movements in the long-term loans account during the year 2011 are summarised

below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 1,417,585
Add: Addition borrowings 365,000
Less: Repayment (898,265)
Balance as at 31 December 2011 884,320

On 28 April 2008, the Company entered into a loan agreement with three
commercial banks, as co-lenders, to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 1,000
million. The purposes of such loans are to repay the existing short-term loan and for
use in the expansion of business. In order to reduce the fluctuation of interest rate
risk, the Company has proportionately entered into an interest rate swap agreement,
whereby a floating interest rate is to be swapped for a fixed interest rate at 6.75%

per annum.

On 29 January 2009, the Company entered into a loan agreement with another
commercial bank to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 400 million. The purposes
of such loan are to repay the existing short-term loan and for use in the expansion of

business.

On 22 October 2009, the Company entered into a loan agreement with three
commercial banks, as co-lenders, to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 1,000
million. The purposes of such loans are to repay the existing short-term loan and for

use in the expansion of business of the Company.

On 25 August 2010, the Company entered into a loan agreement with three
commercial banks, as co-lenders, to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 1,000
million. The purposes of such loans are to repay the existing short-term loan and for

use in the expansion of business of the Company.

On 26 May 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with another
commercial bank obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 500 million. The purposes of
such loan are to repay the existing short-term loan and for use in the expansion of

business.

The loan agreements contains covenants regarding, among other things, the
maintenance of the proportion of shareholding of the major shareholders, dividend
payment, and maintenance of a certain debt to equity ratio, ratio of hire purchase
receivables more than three months’ past due to total hire purchase receivables,
ratio of total hire purchase receivables to loans, prohibition of disposal of assets or
rights of claim under hire purchase agreements and prohibition of entering into new

loan agreements.
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17.

The loans are secured by the transfer of rights of claim under hire purchase
agreements, the mortgage of land and construction thereon and/or to be constructed
thereon in the future, and motorcycle registrations as requested by the commercial
banks.

As at 31 December 2011, the long-term credit facilities of the Company which have

not yet drawn down amounted to Baht 565 million.
Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits as at 31 December 2011, which is

compensations on employees’ retirement, was as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011
Balance at beginning of year 22,172
Current service cost 2,448
Interest cost 860
Benefits paid during the year (23,745)
Balance at end of year 1,735
Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows:
2011 2010

(% per annum) (% per annum)

Discount rate 3.9 4.2
Future salary increase rate (average) 7.5 7.5
Staff turnover rate 17.36 13.98

As at 31 December 2010, the Company has separately recorded reserve for
employee benefits relating for employees taking early retirement in the account
“Provision for employee compensation”, which is presented as current liabilities in
the statement of financial position. This reserve is the provision made by
management using judgement and estimates of the amounts to be paid based on
reasonable assumptions, and rates consistent with the provisions of the Labour Law.
The reserve for long-term employee benefits as discussed in Note 3 recorded in the
account “Reserve for long-term employee benefits” was calculated using actuarial

techniques and is presented as liabilities in the statement of financial position.

19



18.

18.1

18.2

Share capital
Additional share subscription received from the exercise of warrants

During the current year, the Company received additional share subscription totaling

Baht 129.9 million from the exercise of warrants, as detailed below.

Warrant Ordinary share Exercise price Amount

(Units) (Shares) (Baht/share) (Million Baht)
GL-WA 534,700 534,700 12 6.42
GL-W1 5,369,500 5,369,500 23 123.50

The Company registered the increase in its paid up share capital to Baht 311.6

million with the Ministry of Commerce on 3 October 2011 .

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had share premium amounting to Baht 293.7

million as a result of the capital increases (2010: Baht 192.2 million).

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had share subscription received in advance
amounting Baht 149.5 million in its paid up share capital from the exercise of GL-WA
totaling 6,443,985 units.

Reconciliation of number of ordinary shares

(Unit: Shares)

2011 2010

Registered share capital
Number of ordinary shares at the beginning of year 86,300,000 79,800,000
Increase in number of ordinary shares due to

registration during the year - 6,500,000
Number of ordinary shares at the end of year 86,300,000 86,300,000
Issued and paid-up share capital
Number of ordinary shares at the beginning of year 56,416,996 56,167,890
Increase in number of ordinary shares due to

exercise of warrants during the year 5,904,200 249,106
Number of ordinary shares at the end of year 62,321,196 56,416,996
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20.

Warrants

As at 31 December 2011, details of the warrants, which were issued by the

Company, are as follows: -

Type of Issuance date Number of warrants Warrant Period of  Exercise price Exercise ratio
Warrant Issue to of warrant original issued offer price warrant per share per 1 warrant
GL-WA Directors and employees 20 May 2008 1,000,000 - 3 years Baht 12 1 ordinary share
GL-W1 Existing shareholders 4 February 2009 24,300,000 Baht 0.20 3 years Baht 23 1 ordinary share
GL-wB Directors and employees 10 May 2009 500,000 - 3 years Baht 14.50 1 ordinary share
GL-WC Directors and employees 10 May 2010 500,000 - 3 years Baht 16.59 1 ordinary share

During the year, the movements of warrants of the Company are as follows: -

Number of warrants Number of Number of Number of warrants
Type of outstanding as at Issuance of warrants warrants exercised warrant expired outstanding as at
warrant 31 December 2010 during the year during the year during the year 31 December 2011
GL-WA 1,000,000 (534,700) (465,300) - -
GL-W1 21,883,004 (11,813,485) - - 10,069,519
GL-WB 500,000 - - (276,700) 223,300
GL-WC 500,000 - - (254,400) 245,600

On 19 May 2011, 465,300 GL-WA warrants which had not been exercised by the

warrantholders expired.

On 30 December 2011, 10,069,519 GL-W1 warrants which had not been exercised
by the warrantholders.

Up to 31 December 2011, the Company cancelled a total of 531,100 warrants (GL-
WB and GL-WC) to purchase ordinary shares of the Company that had been
allocated to the directors and management of the Company, because the directors
and management who held those warrants had resigned, thus breaching the

conditions under which the warrants were received.
Dividend

Dividends declared in 2011 consist of the following:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Total Dividend
Dividends Approved by dividends per share
Dividend on the first half Board of Directors’ meeting on
year of 2011 operating 14 September 2011
result 104,076 1.67
Outstanding balance of Annual General Meeting of the
dividend on 2010 shareholders on 20 April 2011 50,211 0.89
Total for 2011 154,287 2.56
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22,

23.

Dividends declared in 2010 consist of the following:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Total Dividend

Dividends Approved by dividends per share
Outstanding balance of Annual General Meeting of the

dividend on 2009 shareholders on 21 April 2010

operating result 39,460 0.70
Dividend on the first quarter Board of Directors’ meeting on

of 2010 operating result 16 June 2010 48,513 0.86
Dividend for three quarters  Board of Directors’ meeting on 9

of 2010 operating result December 2010 84,625 1.50

Total for 2010 172,598 3.06

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the
Company is required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income
after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve reaches
10% of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend

distribution.
Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follow:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 2010
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 74,084 109,474
Depreciation 7,900 7,836

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to
the equity holders of the Company by the sum of the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares to be issued for conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares are cancelled or expire during the
year. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning

of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per share and

diluted earnings per share:

Weighted average

Profit for the year number of ordinary shares Earnings per share
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
(Thousand Baht)  (Thousand Baht) (Thousand shares) (Thousand shares) (Baht) (Baht)
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year 215,078 263,253 58,926 56,348 3.65 4.67
Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares
GL-WA - - - 533
GL-WA1 - - - 4,643
GL-WB - - 150 218
GL-WC - - 123 177
Total - - 273 5,571
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary
shareholders assuming
the conversion of dilutive
potential ordinary shares 215,078 263,253 59,199 61,919 3.63 4.25

24. Provident fund

The Company and employees have jointly established a provident fund in
accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the
Company contributed to the fund monthly at the rate of 3% of basic salary. The fund,
which is managed by Ayudhya Fund Management Company Limited, will be paid to
employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the years
2011 and 2010, the Company contributed Baht 1.0 and Baht 1.3 respectively to the
fund.

25. Commitments
25.1 Service commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has the outstanding service commitments
which are to be repaid within one year amounting to Baht 0.8 million (2010: Baht 0.4

million).
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25.2 Guarantees

26.

27.

271

As at 31 December 2011, there was outstanding bank guarantee of approximately
Baht 0.3 million (2010: Baht 0.3 million) issued by the bank on behalf of the

Company in respect of electricity and post guarantee.
Financial information by segment

The majority of the operations of the Company involves the single business segment
of hire purchase of motorcycles, and is carried on in a single geographic area,
Thailand. As a result, all revenues, operating income and assets as reflected in
these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned industry and geographic

area.
Financial instruments
Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash
equivalents, hire purchase and installment sales receivables, pledged fixed deposit
at financial institution, accounts receivable and loans to employees, bank overdraft
and short-term loans from financial institutions and long-term borrowings. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are

managed is described below.
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to hire purchase and
installment sales receivables. The Company manages the risk by adopting
appropriate credit control policies and procedures. In addition, the Company does
not have high concentration of credit risk since it has a large customer base.
Therefore, the Company does not expect to incur material financial losses in excess

of the allowance for doubtful accounts it has already provided.
Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits with
financial institutions, hire purchase and installment sales receivables, pledged fixed
deposit at financial institution, accounts receivable and loans to employees,
bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions and long-term
borrowings. However, since most of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate,

the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.
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Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and 2010
classified by type of interest rates are summarised in the table below, with those
financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based

on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit: Million Baht)

2011
Fixed interest rate Floating
Within 1-5 interest Non-interest
1 year years rate bearing Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 167.60 20.36 187.96
Hire purchase and installment
sales receivables, net 676.42  1,239.33 - - 1,915.75
Pledged fixed deposit at
financial institution 0.31 - - - 0.31
Accounts receivable and
loans to employees - - - 0.10 0.10
Financial liabilities
Long-term loans 694.95 189.37 - - 884.32
(Unit: Million Baht)
2010
Fixed interest rate Floating
Within 1-5 interest Non-interest
1 year years rate bearing Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.41 0.46 0.87
Hire purchase and installment
sales receivables, net 1,227.87 1,182.18 - - 2,410.05
Pledged fixed deposit at
financial institution 0.27 - - - 0.27
Accounts receivable and
loans to employees - - - 0.07 0.07
Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft and short-term
loans from financial
institutions - - 72.92 - 72.92
Long-term loans 788.13 629.46 - - 1,417.59
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27.2

28.

The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage risk associated
with the financial liabilities carrying floating interest. The detail of long-term loans is
set out in Note 16. The detail of the interest rate swap agreements expired on

31 March 2011, as mentioned in Note 16, to fixed rate of 6.75% per annum.
Foreign currency risk

The Company considers itself no foreign currency risk because it has no foreign

currency transactions.
Fair values of financial instruments

Methodology of fair value measurement depends upon characteristics of the financial
instruments. For the financial instruments which are regarded as traded in an active
market, fair value has been determined by the latest quoted market price. If however
the appropriate quoted market price cannot be determined, the fair value is

determined using an appropriate valuation technique.

The Company establishes fair value of its financial instruments by adopting the

following methods and assumptions:

a) For financial assets and liabilities which have short-term maturity, including
deposits with financial institutions, accounts receivable and loans to employees
and bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions, the carrying
amounts at the balance sheet date are considered to be a reasonable

approximation of their fair value.

b)  For hire purchase and installment sales receivables, fair values are the carrying
amount net of unearned hire purchase income and allowance for doubtful

accounts.

c) For long-term loans from financial institutions carrying interest at the rates
close to the market rates, fair value is the carrying amount in the balance

sheet.
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it
has an appropriate financial structure and preserves the ability to continue its

business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, the Company had a debt-
to-equity ratio of 0.73:1 (2010: 1.62:1).
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29.

30.

31.

Event after the reporting period

On 30 December 2011, the Company entered into a USD 1.0 million short-term loan
agreement with an overseas company. The loan has a term of six months and the
interest charge is fixed at USD 0.07 million. Subsequently, on 11 January 2012 the
oversea company drew down USD 0.5 million of the loan from the Company.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s classification, following the
adoption of presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development described
in Note 2, and the adoption of new and revised accounting standards described in
Note 3.

The reclassifications had no effect to previously reported profit (loss) or
shareholder’s equity.
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised

directors on 13 February 2012.
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